
IN THE TENNESSEE PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION
AT NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE

IN RE:

COMPLAINT AND PETITION OF THE
CONSUMER ADVOCATE DIVISION
IN THE OFF'ICE OF'THE ATTORNEY
GENERAL AGAINST TELLICO VILLAGE
PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

Docket No.25-00048

CONSUMER ADVOCATE'S PETITION TO INTERVENE
AND/OR COMPLAINT FOR THE TENNESSEE PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION TO

CONVENE A SHOW CAUSE PROCEEDING AGAINST
TELLICO VTLLAGE PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

The Consumer Advocate Division of the Office of the Tennessee Attorney General

(ooConsumer Advocate"), by and through counsel, pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. $ 65-4-118,

respectfully files this Petition and Complaint rcquest the Tennessee Public Utility Commission

("TPUC" or ooCommission") grant the Consumer Advocate's intervention in this Docket or, in

the alternative, to convene a show cause proceeding requiring Tellico Village Property Owners

Association, Inc. to appear before the Commission to show cause why the Commission should

not have jurisdiction over the Tellico Village Properly Owners Association, Inc. as a regulated

public utility, and why the Commission should not take other actions it deems appropriate for the

following violations of state law:

1. Operation of a public utility without a Certificate of Public Convenience and

Necessity (CCN) in violation of Tenn. Code Ann. $ 65-4-201;

2. Failure to pay an annual inspection fee in violation of Tenn. Code Ann. $ 65-4-

301(a);

3. Failure to file a tariff in violation of Tenn. Code Ann. $ 65-5-102; and

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
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4. Charging rates not approved by the Commission in violation of Tenn. Code Ann. $

65-5-101 and/or 65-5-103.

I. JURISDICTION

The Commission is "specifically authorized and charged under Tenn. Code Ann. $ 65-1-

113, to ensure that the laws of this state as they relate to the [Commission's] jurisdiction

over public utilities 'are enforced and obeyed, that violations thereof are promptly

prosecuted, and all penalties due the state are collected."'l The Commission is empowered to

hear the Consumer Advocate's Petition and Complaint and'orender an order pursuant to the

powers delegated by the Tennessee General Assembly including those provided in Tenn. Code

Arur. $ $ 65 -2-10 6, 65 -3 - 1 05, 65 -4-l I 6, and 65 -4 -120.'2

II. RELEVANT FACTS

1. On June 23, 2025, Harold Wilson, a TVPOA customer, filed a o'Letter of

Determination if a CCN is Needed." Mr. Wilson argues that the TVPOA is not a homeowners

association because the development includes residential and commercial property, and its

commercial facilities are open to the public.

2. The Consumer Advocate oohas the duty and authority" by Tenn. Code Ann. $ 65-

4-118 to represent the interests of Tennessee consumers of public utility services by initiating a

proceeding or intervening as a party in an existing proceeding before the Commission in

accordance with the Uniform Administrative Procedures Act, Tenn. Code Ann. $ 4-5-101 et seq.,

and TPUC rules.

I Order Requiring Laurel Hills Condominiums Property Owners Association To Appear and Show

Cause Llthy a Cease and Desist Order qnd Civil Penqlties & Sanctions Should Not Be Imposed Against It For
Violations of State Law, p. 2, TPUC Docket No. 12-00030 (July 17, 2012).

2 Id.
2



3. The interests of consumers in the determination of whether a water and

wastewater utility are subject to the Commission's jurisdiction, may be affected by the decisions

and orders made by the Commission with respect to the interpretation application, and

implementation of Tenn. Code Ann. $ 65-4-101(6XBXi), and other relevant statutory and

regulatory provisions.

4. Tellico Village Property Owners Association, Inc. and its wholly owned

subsidiaries3 (collectively referred to as the "Association" or "TVPOA") is a Tennessee non-

profit corporation duly authorized to do business in the state.a The Association is ooa planned

community located in Loudon and Monroe County, Tennessee.s It encompasses nearly 5,000

acres along Tellico Lake and has approximately 10,300 residents."6

5. The Association filed its Articles of Incorporation (*1984 Articles") with the

Tennessee Secretary of State on September 18, 1984.7 According to 1984 Articles, one of the

Association's purposes is to look after the interests of both its residents and commercial owners.

Specifically, the 1984 Articles state (emphasis added):

The Corporation does not contemplate pecuniary gain or profit, direct or indirect,
to its members, and the specific purposes for which it is formed are to provide the
preservation of the values of the real estate brought within the jurisdiction of the

Corporation from time to time within the confines of the a residential and

3 Theoowholly-owned subsidiaries include TVPOA Homes, LLC, CS Holdings, LLC, TV Holding, LLC,
and AKJ, LLC. The purpose of these subsidiaries is to hold different type of residential real estate held for resale."

Consolidqted Financiql Statements and Supplementary Information, Tellico Village Property Owners Association

Inc. Yeqrs ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, p.7 . A copy is attached as "TVPOA Complaint - CA Exhibit A."
+ The Association's Secretary of State's control number is 000146281. A copy of the Association's

annual filing for 2025 with the Secretary of State is attached as "TVPOA Complaint - CA Exhibit B."
s According to the Association's website, it represents the "Tellico Village Properly Owners - and is

responsible for governmental functions within Tellico Village. The POA maintains Tellico Village roads, amenities,

water and sewer systems, and operates all Tellico Village facilities. We are a nonprofit organization funded by a
monthly assessment and user fees paid by our property owners." The Association's Homepage, "Life at Tellico
Village" at https://www.tell icovillagepoa.ord.

6 Id.
7 Articles of Incorporation of Tellico Village Property Owner's Association, 1nc. (Sept. 18, 1984;

l2:07pm). A copy of the Articles of Incorporation is attached as "TVPOA Complaint - CA Exhibit C."
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commercial community being created under the name of Tellico Village,

Tennessee and to promote the health. safetv and welfare of the residents and

commercial owners within the above described property and any additions

thereto as may hereafter be brought within the jurisdiction of the Corporation and

for this purpose. s (emphasis added)

The Association's combination of both residential and commercial development is made clear by

the map of the Tellico site map that is publicly available on the Association's website.e Also,

review of property records for lots within the Association's footprint include lots that are

designated as coillmercial in nature. Some examples of these commercial lots are as follows:

a.

b.
c.

d.

e.

United Community Bank, 2g}Yillage Square, Loudon, TN 3774;r0

Dollar General, 150 Mialaquo Road, Loudon, TN 3774;tt
Marathon Gas Station, 200 Choata Road, Loudon, TN 3774;t2

Food Lion, 101 Cheeyo Way, Loudon, TN 3774;t3 and

200 Mialaquo Road, Loudon, TN 3774.14

8 Id. at p. l, Article v.e Telltci Village Strategic Land Acquisition Initiative: Irwesting in our Future to Control Our Destiny,

p. 6 (Sept. 24,2021). A copy of this Land Acquisition Initiative is attached as "TVPOA Complaint - CA Exhibit D"

and it can also be accessed 31 hups://www.tellicovillagepoa.org/wp-contenVuploads/9.24.21-TellicVillage-Plan.Ddf.
A direct link to the Tellico Village Site map fu 31 httos://www.tellicovillagepoa.org/wp-content/uploads/CCl-
Properw-MA P2 L2pdf-copy. pdf.

r0 A copy of this property's Parcel Details Report and Deed are attached collectively as "TVPOA
Complaint
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6. The 1984 Articles set out the various types of membership in the Association,

which include General Membership, Associate Membership, CooperShare Membership, and

Developer Membership. Of particular interest to the issue at hand is the General Membership,

which is defined in the Association's Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions,as one 'hho is

the record owner of a fee interest in or who is purchasing from the Developer a fee or undivided

fee interst in a Lotl5 or Living Unit."l6

7. Another pulpose of the Association enumerated in the 1984 Articles is the

ownership and operation of water and sewer utilties. Specifically, the 1984 Articles state

(emphasis added) that the Association may:

. own, lease acquire, construct, operate, and maintain recreational facilities,

greenbelt areas, private streets, g1!!!!!g, specifically including, but not limited to,

rs oo,Lof, shall be the numbered lots or numbered and lettered lots in the numbered blocks as shown on

any recorded subdivision plat of The Project." Lots are furthered divided into "Commercial Lot" or "Residential

Lot.', ,,oCommercial Lot' shall mean and refer to any Lot so designated upon any recorded subdivision plat of the

project, or as may be so designated by this Declaration or any supplemental declaration." 'ooResidential Lot' shall

mean and refer io any Lot Jo designated upon any recorded subdivision plat of The Project, or as may be so

designated by this Declaration or any Supplemental Declaration. Declaration of Covenants qnd Restrictions, Tellico

Villige, Tennessee (the "Declaration";, p. 3 Article I., flfl(12)-(14) (December 16, 1985, Loudon County Register's

Offici). A copy of the Declaration is attached as "TVPOA Complaint - CA Exhibit F."
16 TVPOA Complaint - CA Exhibit C, 1984 Articles, p.3, Article VI.
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the water and sewer system, md other common facilities and amenitites,

together with improvements, buildings, structures, and personal properties

incident hereto, hereinafter referred to as ooCommon Properties." 17 (emphasis

added)

8. The Association has exercised its authority to own, operate, andlor control a

community water system (the "Water System").l8 The Public Water System Identification

("PWSID") number for.its water system is TN0000871.1e A screen shot2o from the Tennessee

Department of Environment and Conservation's ("TDEC") dataviewer shows that the

Association's Water System has 5,502 drinking water connections and serves approximately

13,260 customers.2l

t7 Id. atpp.l-2, Article V.(b).18 In the Association's Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions, it was the responsibility of the

developer to construct both the water and sewer/wastewater systems, but the systems would be part of the

Association's Common Properties. TVPOA Complaint - CA Exhibit F, Declaration, p. 10, Article VI.
re The link to TDEC's Water Resources Drinking lVater llatch dataviewer is

https://dataviewers.tdec.tn.gov/DWWJSP/WaterSystemDetail.isp?tinwsys is-number:657&tinwsys-st-code:TN&
wsnumber:TNO000871.

20 Id.2t In calculating the number of customers from the number of service connections is determine by

multiplying the number of connections (5504) by 2.41, which is the Loudon County household factor. UNtrpp
STATES CENSUS BSREAU, Qurcr Facrs: LouDoN Cotxry TENNEssEEPersons per household, 2019-2023,

https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/factltable/loudoncountytennessee/BZAI15222. A copy of the information

available from the US Census Bureau webpage is attached as "TVPOA Complaint - CA Exhibit G." Also, it should

be noted that in its 2018 Sanitary Survey, TDEC set out new monitoring requirements due to the Association's

drinking water customer population exceeding 10,000. At the time of this 20 I 8 document, the Association had only

4,224 service connections at the time. Letter from Eric Webber, TDEC to TVPOA (July 6, 2018). A copy of the

2018 Sanitary Survey is affached as "TVPOA Complaint - CA Exhibit H." A link to a list of TDEC documents for
the Association's Water System can be accessed at
https://dataviewers.tdec.tn.gov/dataviewers/flp:2005:34031:9586418647251:::34031:P34031 SITE-ID:48482.
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To put this in perspective, the Enforcment and Compliance History Online ("ECHO")

database hosted by the United States Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") breaks down

water systems into four categories: (1) Very Small : 500 or less population served; Small : 501

- 3,300 population served; Medium : 3,301 - 10,000 population served; Large: 10,001 -

100,000 served; and Very Large: Greater than 100,000.22

The Association has also exercised its authority in the construction, installation,

modification, or operation of any wastewater treatment works. As a result, TDEC issued a State

Operating Permit ("SOP-89079")to the Authority, which was renewed on September I,2023.23

This permit authorizes the Association to operate a municipal wastewater collection system

which is then discharged partly to the Tellico Area Service System (NPDES Permit

22 Webpage: EPA's Drinking Water Dashboard Help, Chart Types, Public Water Systems, PWSs by

Size at https://echo.eoa.gov/help/drinking-water-qlik-dashboard-help#pwsbysize.23 Letter with renewed SOP Permit No. SOP-89079A from Vojin Janjic, Manager of TDEC Water-based

Systems, to Chet Pillsbury, TVPOA CEO (August 31,2023) copy of the State Operating Permit is attached as

"TVOPOA Complaint - CA Exhibit I." A link to the TDEC permit and documents related to the wastewater system

can be accessed at

https://dataviewers.tdec.tn.gov/dataviewers/flp:2005:34051 :884839253 l82l :::3405 1:P34051-PERMIT-NUMBER
:SOP-89079.
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#TN0082121) Wastewater Treatment Plant and partly to the Loudon Wastewater Treatment

Plant (NPDES Permit #TN0058181) for processing.2a

9. To operate both a water and a sewer/wastewater system, the Authority must also

have the authority to manage the financial aspects of being a utility owner. The authority of the

Association to handle the financial needs of its water and sewer systems can be found it is 1984

Articles and its Declaration. The 1984 Articles provides the Association the authority to fix,

levy, and enforce payment by the terms of the Declaration, and to pay all expenses connected

with the Common Properties. As previously explained, the water and sewer/wastewater systems

are Common Properites.2s Specifically, the 1984 Articles state:

Fix. lew. collect and enforce pavment by any lawful means of all charges and

assesment nursuant to the terms of the Declaration and to pav all expenses in
connection with the Common Properties therefrom, including all business of
the Association, together with all licenses, taxes, or governmental charges levied
or imposed against the property of the Corporation.26 (emphasis added)

The Declaration states:

Section 1. Water and Sewer System. It is contemplated that the water system

distribution infrastructure and sewer collection infrastructure serving The

Project27 and the with
The Project shall be constructed by the Developer but will be a part of the
Common Properties2s. . . The cost of the acquisition of treated water and sewer

treatment from third party sources, construction of water storage facilties and

booster chlorinators as needed, l4l4gg4gggp!
taxes and other expenses incident to the water svstem and Sewer svstem and
operation of the same" shall be paid from Assessments as herein provided and

24 Letter from Hassan A. Sanaat, TDEC Division of Water Resources, to Kevin Hamil, TVPOA Utilities
Manager, about a Sanitary Sewer Survey Inspection, p. I (Sept. 18, 2024). A copy of this letter is attached as

"TVOPOA Complaint - CA Exhibit J."2s TVPOA Complaint- CA Exhibit C,1984 Articles atpp.l-2, Article V.(b).
26 TVPOA Complaint- CA Exhibit C,1984 Articles atpp.l-2, Article V.(d).
27 "'Project' means all real property concurrently herewith or in the future subjected to this Declaration.

TVPOA Complaint- CA Exhibit F, Declaration, p. 10, Article I.(4).
28 o'oCommon Property' means any property, real, personal or mixed, owned or leased by the Association,

those areas reflected as such upon any recorded subdivision plat of the Project and those areas so designated from
time to time by the developer, intended t be devoted to the common use and enjoyment of the Owners." TVPOA
Complaint - CA Exhibit F, Declaration, p. 10, Article I.(5).
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from charpes made to Owners29 for furnishing such services at such prices as

shall be fixed from timt to time bv the Board of Directors of the
Association.3o

To summarize the 1984 Articles and the Declaration, the Association's Board of Directors are

authoritzed to set a rate for water and sewer services provided to the Tellico Village lot owners,

both commercial and residential.

10. The Association through its Board of Directors sets water and sewer rates

including the assessment of any additional fees like the "Water and Sewer Infrastructure Asset

Fee" ("WSIAF).31 The water and sewer rates effective as of January I,2025, are as follows:32

TELLICO VILLAGE POA * WATER & SEWER RATES
Elfective: January l, 2025

NESTDENTIAL
WATER

FTRST 2,0m GAL. @ 38.m {2,000 GAL.)

NEXT I 3,000 GAL @ 1 3.oO PER 1 ,oo0

NEXI I 5,000 oAt, @ 1 5,00 PER 1 ,0m

ovER 3o,oooGAL. @ 2o.oo PER t,ooo

COMMERCIAL
WATER

FtnsT2,0m GAL @ 3S.00 (2,000 GAL.)

NEXT I 3.Om GAL O 1 3.OO PER r ,000

SEWER

FTRST 2.000 GAL. @32.00 PER2,000

NEXT3.000CAL. @9.00 PER 1,@0

($s.oo E,mo oAL, MAX)

SEWER

FIRST 2,000 GAL. @s2.o0 PEn 2,0,00

NEXT 23,000 OAL, @S.o0PER r,Oo0

ovER 2s,000 GAL. @ 0.00 pER I ,000

tax.0m
TA( ,oC'lE

LOUDON CO. WATER OiILY
mxRoE co. vrr tER oNLY

MtNtMU!,t Bil-L (nEStDENrALl

MONROECOUNW LOTJDON COUNTY

$159.S2

0-2,000 oAL.

rOTAL

s3s.00 WAT€R
32.00 sEwER

6.40 SEW. MAINT
80.00wstAF
3.52 TAX

t1 sr3,

$38.00 WAIER
32.00sEwER

6.40SEW. MAINT.
s0.00wstAF
3.,l2TAX

2e "'Owners' means the Developer and any person, firm, corporation, partnership, association or other

legal entity, or any combination thereof owning of record or purchasing from the Developer a fee interest in a Lot,
Living, Unit or Cooper Share, or who has purchased or is purchasing an Associate Membership form the

Developer." TVPOA Complaint - CA Exhibit F, Declaration, pp. 3-4, Article I.(22).30 TVPOA Complaint - CA Exhibit F, Declaration, p. 10, Article VI, $ l.3r Letter from the TVPOA Board of Directors to TVPOA members about the WSIAF (Oct. 2024). A
copy of this letter is attached as "TVOPOA Complaint - CA Exhibit K." This letter is also available publicly from
the Association's website at https://www.tellicovillagepoa.org/wp-content/uploads/WSlAF-Ltr.-Oct.2024-V3.pdf.32 A copy of the Association's Water and Sewer Rates is attached as "TVOPOA Complaint - CA Exhibit
L." A link to the Association's rates can be accessed at https://www.tellicovillageooa.org/wp-
contenVuoloads/Water-S ewer-Rates-202 5.odf.

9



ilI. THE COMMISSION HAS JURISDICTION OVER TVPOA

1 1. Despite its ownership of the above-referenced drinking water and wastewater

systems and the establishment of rates for both residential and commercial lot owners, the

Association claims it is exempt from the Commission's jurisdiction pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann.

$ 65-4-101(6XB), which involves oonon-profit homeowners associations or organizations whose

membership is limited to owners of lots in residential subdivisions" and any oononprofit

corporation as defined by $ 501(c)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code."33 In a memorandum to the

Association's Board of Directors, its attorney advised that the Association is not subject to direct

rate regulation from the Tennessee Public Utility Commission. The attorney's reasoning is

provided in the excerpt below:34

In addition to thc foregoing :uralysis of rhe Declarution, this lirtn also rcviewcd rtrty
tupplicable Tennessec lnws and regulations which could lxrterrtially irnpact ihc Board's proposed

imgrsition of a walcr and sewer capital improvement fce. 'lo begin with. altltouglr'I'VPOA is
subjcct to certain Statc regulation rcgarding thc functional operation rrf lher Systenrs hy thc
Tl.ntressee Departmcnt of Environmcnt and Conscn'alion {*'IDEC*}. it dtrs nol appear that

TVPOA is subjcct to any direct rate regulation by eithcr 'l DF1C or the 'l'cnncssee Cornptrollcr.
'l'his is evidenced by thc tact that1VI'OA docs nol disclose its water and sswcr t'ntes frrr rcvicw
or opploval by eithcr TDFIC or the 'l'cmcssee Cornptrurller'. Further, I'VPOA is cxprcssly

excrupteil from ratc rcgulation by the I'eilressee Puh[ic Utility Conrnrission pursuant to'l'cnn,
Codc.Ann. $ 65-4-101. ar a "public utility" subjccl kr regulation thcrcby'tl<rc.s trot includc tlrc
lirllorving: "nonprolit homeormers associations or organiualions whose mcmbetship is linritcd ttr

owncrs of lots in residential subdivisions...rvhich curstruct, opcrcte nr maiutain rvater

systenls...for the exclusivc use of that subdivision" and "an.y nonprolit corpot'ation, as dellncd irr

$ 5{}l(c)(a) of thc lntcnlfll Revenue Coclc.. which ol.ns and ope rates a waslcwfllL'r system prirnarily
lirllheuscofthcrrrcrnbersol'thecorporllion...'o Accordingly,itdoesnoloppearthatthercurc
any applicable Tenncssee larvs or rcgulutiorrs which wruld subject TVPOA to direct rate regulation
or would otherr+isc preclude the Board's proposcd inrprsition of a nitlcr and sex'et capital
improvement lbe.

33 TENN. CoDE ANN. $ 65-4-l0l(6XB).34 Memorandum from Kevin C. Stevens at Kennerly, Montgomery, & Finley, P.C. to TVPOA Board of
Directors on its Authority to Implement Water and Sewer Capital Improvement Fee, p. 3 (March 1,2024). A copy
of this memorandum is "TVOPOA Complaint - CA Exhibit M." This memorandum is also available publicly from
the Association's website at https://www.tellicovillagepoa.org/wp-content/uploads/Legal-Ooinion-Regarding-
Imposition-of-Water-and-Sewer-Capital-Improvernent-Fee-3 -2 I -24.pdf.

10



12. Although parts of the statute are quoted in the above-referenced memorandum, it

is important to view the entire statutory language for the qualification for an exemption from the

Commission's jurisdiction. Tenn. Code Ann. $ 65-4-101(6XBXi) states (emphasis added):

'Public utility' does not mean nonprofit homeowners associations or

organizations whose membership is I

subdivisions, which associations or organizations own, construct, operate or

maintain water, street light or park maintenance service systems for the exclusive

use of that subdivision; provided, however, that the subdivisions are unable to

obtain such services from the local utility district. None of the properly, property

rights or facilities owned or used by the association or organization for the

rendering of such services shall be under the jurisdiction, supervision or control of
the Tennessee public utility commission;

As shown aboveo the Association's Lot Owners, as defined by the Declaration, include both

residential and commercial lot owners. The Association has its own ooApplication for Utility

Service" in which an applicant must choose water, sewer, or mailbox service (i.e. start service or

end service).35 An applicant must also identiff the type of utility service - commercial or

residential - for determining the amount of a refundable deposit.36 Also, the water and sewer

rates set by the Association's Board of Directors include rates for both residential and

commercial customers. Accordingly, the Association does not fall within the exception for

homeowner associations under Tenn. Code Ann. $ 65-4-101(6XBXD.

13. The next exception to regulation by TPUC involves non-profit 501(c)(a)

organrzations and has been raised by TVPOA in a response to a consumer plaint filed with the

Consumer Affairs Division.3T This exception is a two-step process: (a) designation as a

35 A copy of the Association's Application for Utility Service is attached as "TVOPOA Complaint - CA

Exhibit N."
36 Id.31 Kevin C. Stevens, TVPOA attorney, letter to Sheila Williams, Consumer Specialist (August 20,2024).

The citizen complaint and TVPOA's response are attached as "TVOPOA Complaint - CA Exhibit O."

1l



501(cXa) non-profit and (b) a written statement of exemption from the Commission Tenn. Code

Ann. $ 65-4-101(6XBXii) states (emphasis added):

(iD Public utility" does not mean any nonprofit corporation, as defined in $

501(cXa) of the Internal Revenue Code (26 U.S.C. $ 501(c)( )), which owns and

operates a wastewater sYstem primarily for the use of the members of the

corporation
regulation as a public utility from the Tennessee public utility commission prior to

January 1.2009;

The Association last filed, with the United States Internal Revenue Service ('.IRS"), as a

501(cXa) in2022.38 It is unclear if the Association is currently a 501(c)(a) non-profit. However,

even if Association is currently a 501(c)(a) or if it files documentation to retroactively reinstate

its status as a 501(c)(4), it does not meet the second step of this exemption analysis. The

Consumer Advocate conducted legal research but could not locate o'a written statement of

exemption from regulation as a public utility from the [Commission] prior to January 1,2009"

for the Association.3e The Consumer Advocate also filed a records request with the Commission

resulting in a response from the Commission's General Counsel stating that it had no record of

such a written statement for the Association.ao

IV. ALLEGED VIOLATIONS OF STATE LAW

The Association does not fall within the statutory exemptions from the Commission's

regulatory oversight as set out in $ 65-4-101(6XB) as explained in above. Accordingly, the

Association is subject to the Commission's jurisdiction. The following actions, alleged to have

been performed by the Association, constitute violations of state law:

A. The Association failed to obtain a Certificate of Convenience and Necessity.

38 A copy of this 2022 filing with the IRS is attached as "TVOPOA Complaint - CA Exhibit P."
3e The bbnsumer Advocate conducted a search for "Tellico Village" in Westlaw's administrative agency

records for TPUC, but no documents were found.
40 A copy of the Consumer Advocate's request for records and the Commission's response is attached

collectively as "TVOPOA Complaint - CA Exhibit Q."
I2



COUNT 1:

The failure of the Association to obtain a CCN upon its construction and

operation of a water utility and a sewer utility that serve the public violates

Tenn. Code Ann. 565-4-20I, which states:

No public utility shall establish or begin the construction of, or

operate any line, plant, or system, or route in or into a municipality
or other territory already receiving a like service from another public

utility, or establish service therein, without first having obtained

from the authority, after written application and hearing, a

certificate that the present or future public convenience and

necessity require or will require such construction

establishment, and operation, and no person or corporation not at

the time a public utility shall commence the construction of any

plant, line, system, or route to be operated as a public utility, or

the operation of which would constitute the same, or the owner or

operator thereof, a public utility as defined by law, without having
first obtained, in like manner, a similar certificate; provided,

however, that this section shall not be construed to require any

public utility to obtain a certiftcate for an extension in or about a

municipality or territory where it shall theretofore have lawfully
cofirmenced operations, or for an extension into territory, whether

within or without a municipality, contiguous to its route, plant, line, or
system, and not theretofore receiving service of a like character from
another public utility, or for substitute or additional facilities in or to

territory already served by it.

The Association has not paid an annual inspection fee.

COUNT 2:

The failure of the Association to pay annual inspection fees violates Tenn. Code

Ann. $ 65-4-301(a), which states:

(aXl) Every public utility doing business in this state and subject to

the control andjurisdiction of the authority to which the provisions of
this chapter apply, shall pay to the state of Tennessee on or before

April 1 of each yatr, a fee for the inspection, control and

supervision of the business, service and rates of such public utility.

B
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C. The Association has not filed a tariff or schedule of its rates or charges with the

Commission for its approval.

COUNT 3:

The failure of the Association to file a tariff since constructing the water and

sewer utilities violates Tenn. Code Ann. $ 65-5-102, which states:

D

The authority has the power to require every such public utility to file
with it complete schedules of every classification employed and of
every individual or joint rate, toll, fare, or charge made or exacted

by it for any product supplied or service rendered within this state as

specified in such requirement.

The Association has charged and collected money for water and sewer services

without approval of the Commission.

COUNT 4:

The actions of the Association in imposing rates for water and sewer service to

the public without Commission approval violates Tenn. Code Ann. $ 65-5-101'

which states:

(a) The Tennessee regulatory authority has the power after

hearing upon notice, by order in writing, to fix just and reasonable

individual rates, joint rates, tolls, fares, charges or schedules thereof,

as well as commutation, mileage, and other special rates which shall

be imposed, observed, and followed thereafter by any public utility
as defined in $ 65-4-101, whenever the authority shall determine any

existing individual rate, joint rate, toll, fare, charge, or schedule

thereof or commutationo mileage, or other special rates to be unjust,

unreasonable, excessive, insufficient, or unjustly discriminatory or
preferential, howsoever the same may have heretofore been fixed
or established. In fixing such rates, joint rates, tolls, fares, charges or
schedules, or commutation, mileage or other special rateso the

authority shall take into account the safety, adequacy and efficiency
or lack thereof of the service or services fumished by the public

utility.
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WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests the Commission either grarrt the

Consumer Advocate's intervention or, in the alternative, grant the Consumer Advocate's

complaint to open a docket requiring the Association to appear before the Commission to show

cause why the Commission should not have jurisdiction over TVPOA as a regulated public

utility and why the Commission should not take other actions it deems appropriate for the

violations enumerated above.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED,

(BPRNo.03155l)
Attorney General and Reporter
State of Tennessee

16^* bl Sa.r- ^J,KAREN H. STACHOWSKI (BPR No. 019607)
Deputy Attorney General
VANCE L. BROEMEL (BPR No. 011421)
Managing Attorney
Office of the Tennessee Attorney General
Consumer Advocate Division
P.O. Box 20207
Nashville, Tennessee 37 202-0207
Phone: (615)741-2370
Fax: (615) 741-1026
Email : karen. stachowski@ag.tn. eov
Email : vance.broemel@ as.tn. gov
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CERTIFI OF'SERVICE,

I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of the foregoing was served via electronic

mail, and upon request, a courtesy copy sent by U.S. mail:

Kelly Cashman Grams, Esq, General Counsel
Tennessee Public Utility Commission
Legal Division
502 Deaderick Street, 4th Floor
Nashville, TN 37243
kelly.grarns@tn.gov

Tellico Village Property Owners Association, Inc.
Chester Pillsbury, Registered Agent
112 Chota Center
Loudon, TN 37774

Kevin C. Stevens, Esq.
Kennerly Montgomery & Finley, P.C.
P .O. Box 442
Knoxville, TN 37901
k$tevens@krqftLc.com

Harold Wilson
322MiamiL,ane
Loudon, TN 3774
19app.trail@gmal.com

This the f day of TUI r t ,202s.I

Y^^ n- \d . Jr\rt \*Jr?^ffiu. srAcHowsKi
Deputy Attorney General
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

 
Board of Directors 
Tellico Village Property Owners Association, Inc. 
 
Opinion  
 
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tellico Village Property Owners 
Association, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Association), which comprise the consolidated balance 
sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the related consolidated statements of revenues, 
expenses and changes in members’ equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and the 
related notes to the consolidated financial statements.  
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Association as of December 31, 2022 and 
2021, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in 
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of 
our report. We are required to be independent of the Association and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We 
believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America, and for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether 
there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the 
Association’s ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date the consolidated 
financial statements are issued. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an independent auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if 
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the 
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements. 
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Board of Directors 
Tellico Village Property Owners Association, Inc. 
 
 

2 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
(continued) 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:  
 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence 
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association’s internal control. 
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Association’s ability to continue as a 
going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings and certain internal 
control–related matters we identified during the audit. 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require the 
supplementary information on future major repairs and replacements on page 21 be presented to 
supplement the basic consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and, although not a part of the basic consolidated financial statements, is required 
by the Financial Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic consolidated financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with GAAS, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic consolidated financial 
statements and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic consolidated financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information, because 
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or 
provide any assurance. 
 

Coulter & Justus, P.C. 
 
 
June 21, 2023 
Knoxville, Tennessee 
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2022 2021
 Assets 
 Cash 858,417$       2,737,758$    
 Designated cash and cash equivalents 4,772,258      9,054,754      
 Restricted cash and cash equivalents for deferred   

 compensation plan 252,238         177,331         
 Designated investments 10,857,138    -                     
 Membership assessments receivable, less allowance for bad 

debts of $1,753,053 in 2022 and $1,864,070 in 2021 75,837           45,086           
 Utility payments receivable 348,762         316,750         
 Prepaid expenses and other assets 130,264         126,393         
 Inventories 1,022,302      670,011         
 Net property, plant and equipment 27,553,053    25,745,674    
 Residential real estate held for resale 217,228         422,920         
 Net financing lease right of use assets 5,818,085      5,890,420      
 Net operating lease right of use assets 753,923                   923,713 
 Goodwill, less accumulated amortization of $95,000 in 2022 211,689         253,200         

  and $63,000 in 2021 

 Total assets 52,871,194$  46,364,010$  

 Liabilities and members’ equity 
 Liabilities: 

 Accounts payable 1,078,305$    1,362,433$    
 Accrued salaries, wages and benefits 759,762         645,199         
 Other accrued expenses 15,590           136,783         
 Deferred compensation plan 252,238         177,331         
 Deferred revenues 4,439,821      4,202,252      
 Long-term debt 4,620,549      4,950,678      
 Obligation under finance lease - TRDA 5,429,562      5,578,528      
 Obligation under operating leases 753,923         932,098         

 Total liabilities 17,349,750    17,985,302    

 Members’ equity 35,521,444    28,378,708    

 Total liabilities and members’ equity 52,871,194$  46,364,010$  
  

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.   

Tellico Village Property Owners Association, Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31

3

TVPOA Complaint – CA Exhibit A



2022 2021
 Revenues 
Membership assessments, including service charges of
$59,446 in 2022 and $36,678 in 2021 12,880,737$  11,652,095$  

 Golf courses 3,624,720      3,332,719      
 Water and sewer services 6,162,240      5,906,546      
 Utility installations 1,966,235      1,772,945      
 Recreation and beach 1,630,305      1,327,842      
 Dock and recreational vehicle storage 1,279,631      1,087,122      
 Other income 5,333,407      3,112,831      
 Total revenues 32,877,275    28,192,100    

 Expenses 
 Golf courses 5,319,889      4,818,839      
 Corporate and administrative, including provision for bad  

 debts of $28,138 in 2022 and $47,856 in 2021 4,751,495      4,034,126      
 Public works and general maintenance 4,177,062      2,987,737      
 Recreation and beach 1,854,094      1,738,667      
 Water and sewer services 4,629,307      4,372,218      
 Utility installations 2,128,703      1,867,709      
 Public safety 178,343         186,324         
 Food service 1,424,921      1,261,639      
 Dock and recreational vehicle storage 1,107,747      824,666         
 Interest 162,978         109,090         
 Total expenses 25,734,539    22,201,015    

 Excess of revenues over expenses 7,142,736      5,991,085      

28,378,708    22,387,623    
35,521,444$  28,378,708$  

  
  

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

Tellico Village Property Owners Association, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Revenues, Expenses 

Year ended December 31

4
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 2022 2021
Operating activities
Excess of revenues over expenses 7,142,736$    5,991,085$    
Adjustments to reconcile excess of revenues over expenses

 to net cash provided by operating activities: 
 Provision for bad debts             28,138             47,856 
 Increase in deferred compensation plan             74,907             83,913 
 Depreciation and amortization        2,147,127        1,826,851 
 Gain on insurance recoveries, sales of property, plant and  

 equipment and residential real estate held for resale      (3,328,385)      (1,175,503)
 Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects of  
     acquisition: 

    Accounts receivable         (107,071)           (81,175)
     Prepaid expenses and other assets             (3,871)             73,185 
     Inventories         (352,291)         (104,647)
     Accounts payable and accrued expenses         (299,143)           469,633 
     Deferred revenues           237,569           750,578 

Net cash provided by operating activities        5,539,716        7,881,776 

Investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment      (3,935,512)      (3,153,221)
Purchases of designated investments    (12,358,138)                      - 
Redemptions or sales of designated investments        1,501,000                      - 
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment and 

 residential real estate held for resale           792,026        1,797,670 
Insurance proceeds received for damage to building        2,853,073           259,562 
Cash paid for business combination                      -      (5,300,000)
Net cash used in investing activities    (11,147,551)      (6,395,989)

Financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings                      -        3,975,000 
Principal payments on long-term debt         (330,129)      (1,276,356)
Principal payments on obligation under finance lease obligations        (148,966)         (142,551)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities         (479,095)        2,556,093 

Tellico Village Property Owners Association, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31

5
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2022 2021

Change in cash and cash equivalents  $  (6,086,930)  $    4,041,880 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year      11,969,843        7,927,963 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  $    5,882,913  $  11,969,843 

Reconciliation to Consolidated Balance Sheets
Cash 858,417$       2,737,758$    
Designated cash and cash equivalents        4,772,258        9,054,754 
Cash and cash equivalents restricted for deferred 

 compensation plan           252,238           177,331 
Total cash and cash equivalents  $    5,882,913  $  11,969,843 

  

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

Year ended December 31

Tellico Village Property Owners Association, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (continued)

6
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Tellico Village Property Owners Association, Inc. 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

December 31, 2022 
 
 
 

7 

1. Significant Accounting Policies 
 
General 
 
Tellico Village (the Village) is a planned community located in Loudon County and Monroe 
County, Tennessee. It encompasses nearly 5,000 acres along Tellico Lake and has approximately 
10,300 residents. The Village has approximately 5,100 homes, including approximately 338 
townhouses and 21 senior living homes, and approximately 6,800 platted lots. 
 
Tellico Village Property Owners Association, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, 
(collectively referred to as the Association) is a nonprofit corporation operating under the 
guidelines of a common interest realty association (CIRA). The Association is responsible for the 
maintenance and operation of the various services and facilities located on 1,663 leased common 
property acres and other acquired acres in the Village. 
 
The Association’s wholly-owned subsidiaries include TVPOA Homes, LLC, CS Holdings, LLC, 
TV Holdings, LLC and AKJ, LLC. The purpose of each of these subsidiaries is to hold different 
types of residential real estate held for resale. 
 
The Association maintains and operates several diverse member services and entertainment 
facilities including three championship golf courses, marinas, a yacht and country club, 
recreational and fitness facilities, roads, and sewer and water systems. 
 
Principles of Consolidation 
 
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Association and its wholly 
owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated 
in consolidation. 
 
Designated Cash and Cash Equivalents and Designated Investments 
 
Cash and cash equivalents and investments are designated by the Association’s board of 
directors to be used to fund future operations and capital improvements are classified as 
designated cash and cash equivalents and designated investments in the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheet.  
 
Designed cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits and money market funds. 
Designated investments consist of certificates of deposit and government securities. Investments 
are classified as held-to-maturity, as the intent of the Association is to hold the investments to 
maturity. Investments are stated at cost with realized gains and losses recognized at maturity. 
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Tellico Village Property Owners Association, Inc. 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
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1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
Membership Assessments 
 
Association members are subject to monthly membership assessments to provide funds for 
operating expenses, capital acquisitions and major repairs and replacements. Revenues are 
recognized when performance obligations under the terms of a contract with members are 
satisfied. The Association has determined the benefits received are not distinct and should be 
bundled together as a single performance obligation. Membership assessment revenues are 
recognized over time as the related performance obligation is satisfied at the transaction amount 
expected to be collected. Member assessments are charged to all property owners and may be 
collateralized by a lien on the underlying property. 
 
Membership assessments receivable are stated at the amounts expected to be collected from 
members. The Association provides for an allowance for bad debts for accounts as they are 
determined to be uncollectible based upon a review of aging and collections (generally accounts 
with balances greater than one year in arrears). Service charges are added and recognized as 
revenues once accounts become 60 days past due at the amount expected to be collected. 
Accounts are written off against the allowance for doubtful accounts when all collection efforts 
have been exhausted and the lot in question has been deeded back to the Association. Credit 
losses, when realized, have been within the range of the Association’s expectations. 
 
The Association’s legal counsel is currently engaged in an ongoing comprehensive collection 
program on behalf of the Association aimed at collecting past due assessments, although the 
likelihood of recovering the past due assessments is minimal. The amount that will ultimately be 
recovered as a result of these actions is uncertain. 
 
The annual budget and related membership assessments are determined by the board of directors. 
The Association retains excess funds, if any, at the end of the operating year for use in future 
operating periods. Management believes there have been no material uses of assessed fees for 
other than their collected purpose. 
 
Other Service Revenues 
 
The Association recognizes revenues from golf courses, water service, sewer service, utility 
installations, recreation and beach, and dock and recreational vehicle storage. The Association’s 
revenues from these services are recognized when the performance obligations under the terms 
of a contract with customers are satisfied. Contracts are short-term in nature and may require 
prepayment. 
 
Golf Courses 
 
Golf course revenues are recognized when the round is played. Prepaid golf course revenues are 
included with deferred revenues and recognized when the round is played. Unlimited golf rounds 
are paid in advance, included with deferred revenues and recognized ratably over the period of 
time the customer may utilize the golf courses. 
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Tellico Village Property Owners Association, Inc. 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
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1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
Other Service Revenues (continued) 
 
Water and Sewer Services 
 
Revenues from water services is recognized monthly as the service is consumed. Contracts are 
generally short-term in nature and generally have payment terms of 30 days. Sales and use taxes 
are collected for water services, and the revenues are recognized on a net basis. 
 
The Association’s performance obligations for sewer services include current monthly services 
and future repairs and maintenance. The Association’s governing documents require funds to be 
accumulated for future repairs and maintenance of the sewer system. 20% of the Association’s 
gross sewer system billings are designated for sewer system repairs and maintenance that have 
not yet been incurred. Such amounts are deferred as deferred revenues and will be recorded as 
revenues when the corresponding expenses are incurred and the performance obligation is 
satisfied. The remaining 80% of the gross sewer billing is recognized monthly as the service is 
consumed. Contracts are generally short-term in nature and generally have payment terms of 30 
days. 
 
Utility Installations 
 
Utility installation revenues are recognized when the installation is complete and control is 
transferred to the customer. Prepayments are deferred as deferred revenues until the utility 
installation is complete. 
 
Recreation and Beach 
 
Recreation and beach membership contracts are short-term in nature and may require 
prepayment. Prepayments are deferred as deferred revenues. Revenues are recognized ratably 
over the contract term. Revenues from daily use are recognized at a point in time when the 
service is provided. 
 
Dock and Recreational Vehicle Storage 
 
Dock and recreational vehicle storage contracts are short-term in nature and may require 
prepayment. Prepayments are deferred as deferred revenues. Revenues are recognized ratably 
over the contract term. 
 
Inventories 
 
Inventories consist primarily of supplies to maintain and operate the golf courses, water and 
sewer systems and other operations, along with golf pro-shop sporting goods and fuel for sale at 
certain recreational facilities. These supplies are valued at the lower of cost or estimated net 
realizable value on a first-in, first-out or average cost basis. 
 

TVPOA Complaint – CA Exhibit A



Tellico Village Property Owners Association, Inc. 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
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1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
Property, Plant and Equipment 
 
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost. The Association recognizes common personal 
property and common real property to which the Association has title and can dispose of for cash 
while retaining the proceeds or that is used to generate significant cash flows based on usage 
from members or nonmembers as assets of the Association. The Association is responsible to 
preserve and maintain common property. 
 
Depreciation of property and equipment is provided over the estimated useful lives of the 
respective assets using the straight-line method. Estimated useful lives for financial reporting 
purposes are as follows: 
 

Land improvements  5-40 years 
Buildings and improvements  5-40 years 
Equipment  3-20 years 
Furnishings  3-7 years 

 
Residential Real Estate Held for Resale 
 
Residential lots held for resale represent 131 lots as of December 31, 2022, and 288 lots as of 
December 31, 2021, acquired by foreclosure or in lieu of foreclosure related to past due 
assessments and are reported at estimated fair value (Note 4). The difference between any 
membership assessments receivable recorded and the fair value of the lots, along with any 
subsequent reduction in the recorded values of the lots, is recorded in the provision for bad debts. 
The values of the lots are also reduced by any unpaid real estate taxes assessed by Loudon and 
Monroe Counties and estimated costs to sell. The value of the lots is increased by the payment or 
the release of the obligation to pay the taxes up to but not exceeding the original fair value 
recorded by the Association less estimated costs to sell. The Association is actively marketing 
these lots for resale. 
 
Goodwill 
 
The Association has adopted the accounting alternative provided by Accounting Standards 
Update (ASU) 2014-02, Accounting for Goodwill (ASU 2014-12), which allows nonpublic 
entities to elect to amortize goodwill on a straight-line basis over ten years or less if the entity 
can demonstrate that another useful life is more appropriate. The Association has elected to 
amortize all additions to goodwill over ten years. Under ASU 2014-02, the Association evaluates 
goodwill for impairment only when a triggering event occurs indicating the fair value of the 
Association may be less than its carrying amount. When a triggering event occurs, the 
Association performs a qualitative assessment to determine if a quantitative test is needed. If that 
qualitative assessment demonstrates that it is not more likely than not that an impairment exists, 
no further testing is required. If impairment of goodwill is more likely than not, a quantitative 
test is required that compares the fair value of the Association with its carrying amount. The 
amount by which the carrying amount exceeds fair value is recorded as an impairment loss, up to 
the carrying amount of goodwill. 
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Tellico Village Property Owners Association, Inc. 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
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1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
Deferred Revenues 
 
Deferred revenues consist of prepaid membership assessments and other prepaid service 
revenues where the performance obligation has not yet been fully satisfied. In 2022 and 2021, 
the Association recognized revenues of $4,262,252 and $3,451,674, respectively, which were 
included in deferred revenues at the beginning of each reporting period. Deferred revenues of 
$4,439,821 as of December 31, 2022 are expected to be recognized as revenue during 2023 as 
performance obligations are satisfied. 
 
Leases 
 
Prior to January 1, 2021, operating lease rent was expensed as incurred. Effective January 1, 
2021, the Association adopted Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-02, Leases 
(Topic 842), using the modified retrospective method. The Association elected to adopt the 
package of transition practical expedients and, therefore, has not reassessed (1) whether existing 
or expired contracts contain a lease, (2) lease classification for existing or expired leases or 
(3) the accounting for initial direct costs that were previously capitalized. Topic 842 establishes a 
right-of-use (ROU) model that requires a lessee to recognize a ROU asset and lease liability on 
the balance sheet for all leases with a term longer than 12 months. Leases will be classified as 
finance or operating, with classification affecting the pattern and classification of expense 
recognition in the statement of income. As a result of adopting Topic 842, the Association 
recognized a lease liability of $96,354 with a corresponding ROU asset of the same amount as of 
January 1, 2021. There was no cumulative earnings effect adjustment. 
 
The Association determines if an arrangement is or contains a lease at contract inception. The 
Association recognizes a ROU asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. For 
operating leases, the lease liability is initially and subsequently measured at the present value of 
the unpaid lease payments at the lease commencement date. 
 
Key estimates and judgments include how the Association determines (1) the discount rate it 
uses to discount the unpaid lease payments to present value and (2) lease term. The Association 
uses the interest rate implicit in the lease or its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. 
The lease term includes the noncancellable period of the lease plus any additional periods 
covered by an option to extend that the Association is reasonably certain to exercise. 
 
The ROU asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease 
liability adjusted for lease payments made at or before the lease commencement date, plus any 
initial direct costs incurred less any lease incentives received. Lease expense for lease payments 
is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
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Tellico Village Property Owners Association, Inc. 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
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1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these 
estimates. Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include allowances for 
bad debts, residential real estate held for resale and other contingencies. 
 
Reclassifications 
 
Certain 2021 amounts have been reclassified to conform with 2022 presentation. 
 
Subsequent Events 
 
In preparation of the accompanying financial statements, management has evaluated subsequent 
events that have occurred since the balance sheet date through June 21, 2023, the date the 
financial statements were available for issuance. 
 
2. Designated Cash and Cash Equivalents and Designated Investments 
 
While the Association’s governing documents do not require that funds be accumulated for 
future major repairs and replacements, the Association does accumulate funds that are designated 
for future major repairs, replacement and certain capital projects based on annual determinations 
made by the board of directors. The Association conducted an internal study in January 2023 to 
determine the estimated remaining useful lives and the cost of future major repairs and 
replacements, which is presented as unaudited supplementary information on future major 
repairs and replacements. Actual expenditures may vary from the estimated future expenditures, 
and the variations may be material. 
 
Funds accumulated for future repairs consist of the following: 
 

 2022 2021 
   
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 4,772,258 $9,054,754 
Investments 10,857,138 –  
Total designated cash and cash equivalents and 

investments $15,629,396 $9,054,754 
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2. Designated Cash and Cash Equivalents and Designated Investments (continued) 
 
The following is a schedule of changes in designated cash and cash equivalents and designated 
investments for the years ended December 31: 
 

 Beginning 
Balance Deposits Disbursements 

Ending 
Balance 

2022:     
Amenity $1,600,597 $ 3,808,523 $(3,143,997)  $ 2,265,123 
Dock repair 1 – (1) – 
Repairs and maintenance 5,172,697 8,453,288 (261,528) 13,364,457 
CAF Fee 50,720 286 (51,006) – 
Safety 79,152 580 (79,642) 90 
Tellico Reservoir 

Development Agency 3 268,874 (269,151) (274) 
Water and sewer systems 2,151,584 878,662 (3,030,246) – 
Total $9,054,754 $13,410,213 $(6,835,571) $15,629,396 
     

2021:    
Amenity   $ 187,847 $ 1,912,750  $ (500,000)  $ 1,600,597  

Dock repair 1 – – 1 
Repairs and maintenance 2,519,639 3,192,888 (539,830) 5,172,697 
CAF Fee 50,463 257 – 50,720 
Safety 78,735 417 – 79,152 
Tellico Reservoir 

Development Agency 5,838 
 

333,544 
 

(339,379) 
 

3 
Water and sewer systems 1,713,323 531,138 (92,877) 2,151,584 
Total $4,555,846 $ 5,970,994 $(1,472,086)  $ 9,054,754 
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3. Property, Plant and Equipment 
 
Property, plant and equipment consists of the following as of December 31: 
 

 2022 2021 
   
Land and improvements  $ 13,246,060  $ 12,600,934 
Buildings and improvements 19,771,255 18,553,225 
Equipment:   

Recreation 4,781,701 4,105,980 
Maintenance and operation 3,992,141 3,227,090 
Golf course 3,941,835 3,391,561 
Vehicles 1,956,478 1,948,842 
Food and beverage 607,640 648,717 
Office and communication 671,690 632,826 

Furnishings 175,345 210,438 
 49,144,145 45,319,613 
Less accumulated depreciation (22,960,320) (21,369,535) 
 26,183,825 23,950,078 
Construction in progress 1,369,228 1,795,596 
Net property, plant and equipment  $ 27,553,053  $ 25,745,674 

 
In August 2022, the Association experienced a fire which destroyed one of its clubhouses. The 
Association received insurance proceeds of approximately $2,853,000 in 2022 and 
approximately $43,000 in 2023. The Association intends to rebuild the club house which was 
destroyed by fire however construction costs have not yet been determined. As of December 31, 
2022, the estimated cost-to-complete various other construction in progress projects is 
approximately $1,101,000. 
 
4. Fair Value Measurements 
 
FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, establishes a framework for 
measuring fair value. That framework provides a three-level hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs 
to the valuation techniques used to measure the fair value. The fair value measurement level 
within the hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement.   
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4. Fair Value Measurements (continued) 
 
The three levels of fair value hierarchy are as follows:  

 
 Level 1 – Observable inputs such as quoted market prices in active markets for 

identical assets or liabilities.  
 Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, 

either directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities 
in active markets and quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in markets that are 
not active.  

 Level 3 – Unobservable inputs that reflect the Association’s own assumptions. 
 
Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use 
of unobservable inputs. 
 
The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair 
value: 
 

Residential real estate held for resale: Value determined either by management’s estimate 
based on the real estate tax assessed value or by the most recent average exit price of similar 
lots sold, less costs to sell including unpaid real estate taxes. 

 
The preceding method described may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative 
of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although the Association 
believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the 
use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial 
instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date. 
 
The following table sets forth the fair value of the Association’s assets within the fair value 
hierarchy as of December 31: 
 

 Level 2 
2022:  

Residential real estate held for resale  $ 217,228 
 

2021:  
Residential real estate held for resale  $ 422,920 
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5. Long-Term Debt and Lines of Credit 
 
A summary of the Association’s long-term debt is as follows as of December 31: 
 

 2022 2021 
 
Welcome Center note payable to a financial institution in 

monthly installments of $2,234, including interest at the prime 
rate (7.5% as of December 31, 2022 and 3.25% as of 
December 31, 2021), through August 2025, when any 
remaining principal will be due $   291,284 $   301,667 

Medical office building note payable to a financial institution in 
monthly installments of $11,300, including interest at a fixed 
rate of 3.53%, through March 2027, when any remaining 
principal will be due  561,560 674,011 

CCI Acquisition note payable to a financial institution in 
monthly installments of $27,931, including interest at a fixed 
rate of 3.25% based on 15-year amortization, through 
December 2026, when any remaining principal will be due 
(Note 12) 3,767,705 3,975,000 

Total long-term debt $4,620,549 $4,950,678 
 

Future maturities of long-term debt, as updated for medical office building note payable 
amendment, are as follows as of December 31, 2022: 
 

2023   $ 351,607 
2024  363,554 
2025  611,555 
2026  3,228,974 
2027  64,859 
Total  $4,620,549 

 
The Association has an unused $500,000 line of credit with a financial institution, as of 
December 31, 2022. The line of credit bears interest at the prime rate (7.5% as of December 31, 
2022) and is scheduled to expire in October 2023, unless renewed. 
 
The notes payable and lines of credit agreements are with the same financial institution. The 
arrangements are unsecured and have negative agreements, whereby the Association agrees not 
to grant to any person any lien, security interest, encumbrance, mortgage, pledge or other similar 
interest in any of the Association’s property. The CCI Acquisition note payable is cross-
collateralized and cross-defaulted by all other note payables. The arrangements also require the 
Association to comply with certain financial and other covenants; the Association is in 
compliance with all stated covenants.  
 
Interest paid and expensed related to long-term debt and lines of credit totaled $162,978 in 2022 
and $109,090 in 2021. 
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6. Financing Lease 
 
The Association has a finance lease agreement with the Tellico Reservoir Development Agency 
(TRDA) for approximately 1,663 acres of common properties. The Association is responsible for 
the general care and maintenance of the properties during the term of the lease. The lease 
requires annual payments of $400,000 through 2043 and a final payment of $178,225 in 2044, at 
which time the leased properties will be conveyed to the Association. 
 
Right of use assets and other information under this financing lease are summarized as follows as 
of and for the years ended December 31: 
 

 2022 2021 
   
Cost $6,289,776 $6,289,776 
Accumulated amortization 471,691 399,356 
Net financing lease right of use assets $5,818,085 $5,890,420 
   
Interest expense  $ 251,034 $   257,449 
Amortization expense 73,794 73,794 

 
Other information for the years ended December 31: 
 

 2022 2021 
   
Operating cash flows from finance leases  $ 251,034 $257,449 
Finance cash flows from finance leases 148,966 142,551 
Weighted average remaining finance lease term 22 years 23 years 
Weighted average financing discount rate 4.5% 4.5% 

 
Future minimum lease payments for the finance lease are as follows as of December 31, 2022: 
 

2023   $ 400,000 
2024  400,000 
2025  400,000 
2026  400,000 
2027  400,000 
Thereafter  6,578,225 
Total minimum lease payments  8,578,225 
Less present value discount  3,148,663 
Present value of minimum lease payments  $5,429,562 
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7. Operating Leases

The Association leases certain golf carts and various other equipment under operating leases, 
which expire on various dates through 2026. The golf carts lease agreement contains 12 monthly 
payments of $12,512, followed by 48 monthly payments of $16,006 and a final balloon payment 
of $585,000. The manufacturer of the golf carts has offered to make the final balloon payment in 
exchange for ownership of the related golf carts, which the Association intends to accept. The 
other equipment lease agreements contain fixed payment terms from $608 to $1,358. 

Right of use assets and other information under these operating leases are as follows as of and 
for the years ended December 31: 

2022 2021

Operating lease right of use assets $753,923 $923,713

Obligations under operating lease $753,923 $932,098

A summary of future minimum payments under noncancellable operating leases are as follows as 
of December 31, 2022: 

2023 $225,121
2024 225,121
2025 202,115
2026 148,054
Total undiscounted lease payments 800,411
Less imputed interest 46,488
Obligation under operating leases $753,923

Components of lease expenses are as follows for the years ended December 31: 

2022 2021

Operating lease expense $178,175 $40,379
Short-term lease expense 27,142 4 ,245
Total lease expense $205,317 $85,624

Other information are as follows for the years ended December 31: 

2022 2021

Operating cash flow from operating leases $193,678 $50,191
Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for new 

operating lease obligations – 972,477
Weighted average remaining operating lease term 3.61 years 4.65 years 
Weighted average operating discount rate 3.31% 3.33% 
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8. Operating Lease Income 
 
The Association has operating lease agreements to lease the medical office building and retail 
spaces in the village shopping center to tenants. The medical office building initial lease term is 
for a period of ten years through 2027. The village shopping center leases expire on various dates 
through 2026, and several of these leases have renewal options. Operating lease income is 
included in other income in the consolidated statement of revenues, expense and changes in 
members’ equity and totaled $342,867 in 2022 and $153,551 in 2021. 
 
The asset under these operating leases are included in net property, plant and equipment in the 
accompanying financial statements and summarized as follows as of December 31: 
 

 2022 2021 
   
Cost $2,968,601 $2,968,601 
Accumulated depreciation 289,461 159,632 
Net carrying value $2,679,140 $2,808,969 

 
Future minimum rental payments to be received on these non-cancelable operating leases are 
contractually due as follows as of December 31, 2022: 
 

2023   $ 241,955 
2024  206,676 
2025  186,968 
2026  172,929 
2027  121,708 
Total   $ 930,236 

 
The future minimum rental payments are anticipated to be used by management to fund the 
related debt payments on the medical office building and the CCI Acquisition note payable 
(Note 5). 
 
9. Income Taxes 
 
The Association is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(a) of the Internal 
Revenue Code (the IRC) as an organization described in Section 501(c)(4) of the IRC. The 
Association is also exempt for state income tax purposes. 
 
The Association is subject to an unrelated business income tax on certain of its activities. 
However, as of December 31, 2022, the Association has net operating loss (NOL) carryovers of 
approximately $1,376,000 available to offset future unrelated business income through 2030. 
These NOL carryovers result in a potential deferred income tax benefit of up to approximately 
$289,000, which has not been recognized since future realization is not assured. 
 
With few exceptions, the Association is no longer subject to examinations by tax authorities for 
years before 2019. 
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10. Commitments and Contingencies 
 
The Association has committed to purchase certain water quantities and sewer treatment services 
at established prices from Loudon Utility Board and Tellico Area Services System. 
 
Additionally, the Association from time to time is subject to various claims in the ordinary 
course of business. Management believes the ultimate resolution of any such claims will not 
have a material impact on the Association’s consolidated financial position or operating results. 
 
11. Deferred Compensation and Employee Retirement Plans 
 
The Association has a 401(k) retirement plan. Under the provisions of the plan, eligible 
employees, as defined, who elect to participate, contribute specified amounts of their 
compensation to the various investment funds offered by the plan. The plan allows a 
discretionary matching contribution determined annually by the Board of Directors. Association 
contributions to the plan totaled approximately $104,000 in 2022 and $132,000 in 2021. 
 
The Association also has a 457(f) deferred compensation plan for the benefit of its former chief 
executive officer. The plan is intended to make up for his reduced benefits under the 
Association’s 401(k) Plan due to IRC limitations. The Association contributed approximately 
$84,000 in 2022 and 2021 to the plan. Increases and decreases in the assets restricted for deferred 
compensation plan are offset by corresponding increases and decreases in the related deferred 
compensation plan liability.  
 
12. Business Combination 
 
Effective September 15, 2021, the Association acquired certain land, residential real estate lots, 
boat docks and a building located within Tellico Village from Cooper Communities, Inc. Cooper 
Homes, Inc. Cooper Realty Investments, Inc. and Cooper Commercial Properties I, LLC, in a 
transaction accounted for as a business combination, for a total purchase price of $5,300,000, 
including proceeds received from $3,975,000 note payable to a financial institution (Note 5). The 
assets were acquired to enhance the overall operations of the Association. 
 
The following table summarizes the estimated fair value of the assets acquired as of the 
acquisition date: 
 

Land  $2,340,000 
Building  1,852,500 
Boat docks (recreation equipment)  663,000 
Residential real estate held for resale   128,000 
Goodwill  316,500 
Total purchase price  $5,300,000 
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Management analyzed current accounting, insurance and forecasted maintenance and repair data 
to compile an estimate of remaining useful lives and the replacement costs of common property 
components. Historical acquisition costs of the original property have been adjusted for inflation 
or, if available, a current replacement cost for property quantified in a recent insurance renewal. 
This analysis was completed in January 2023. Actual expenditures may vary from the estimates. 
 
The following table is based on the analysis and presents significant information about the 
common property components: 
 

 Estimated Remaining Estimated Current 
Components Useful Lives (Years) Replacement Cost 

   
Buildings 0-35 $ 30,294,359 
Docks 4-25 6,537,500 
Equipment 4-22 4,900,000 
Fuel - Marine 5-15 200,500 
Golf 0-17 21,080,434 
Recreation 4-16 1,300,000 
Roads 0-35 57,264,178 
Sewer 5-35 86,917,740 
Signs 10 225,000 
Vehicles 2 2,000,000 
Water System 24-56 150,669,000 
Total estimated current replacement cost  $361,388,711 

 
 
 
See Independent Auditor’s Report. 
 

TVPOA Complaint – CA Exhibit A



Division of Business and Charitable Organizations
Department of State
State ofTennessee

312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue, 6th Floor
Nashville, Tennessee 37243

Phone:615-741-228G
sos.tn.gov/

Tre Hargett
Secretary of State

JESSICAJOHNSON
112 CHOTACENTER
LOUDON, TN 37774, USA

0510212025

Filing Acknowledgment
Please review the filinq information below and notifv our office immed iatelv of anv discrepencies
Entity Name:

SOS Control #:

Entity Type:

Status:

Fiscal Year Close:

Business County:

Benefit Type:

TELLICO VILLAGE PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

000146281 lnitial Filing Date:

Nonprofit Corporation Formation Locale:

Active Duration Term:

December Annual ReportDue

LOUDON

Mutual Benefit Corporation Religious Type:

09/1 8/1 984

TENNESSEE

Perpetual

04101t2026

Non-Religious

Document Receipt
Receipt#: 2025-59988

Payment Credit Card - 3893199350

Filing Fee: $20.00

$20.00

Annual Report Due Date: 0410112025

Annual Report Date Filed: 0310412025

Event History

Next Annual Report Due: 0410112026

Tracking N umber: 82025043521

This will acknowledge the filing of the attached Annual Reportwith an effective date as indicated above. When corresponding with
this office or submitting documents for filing, please refer to the control number above.

i.w
Tre Hargeft
Secretary of State

Annual Report Due Date changed from:41112025 to'.41112026

NAICS changed
Officers Changed

TVPOA Complaint – CA Exhibit B



Tracking Number
8.2025043521

Tre Hargett
Secretary of State

Annual Report
Division of Business and Charitable Organizations

Department of State
State ofTennessee

312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue, 6th Floor
Nashville, Tennessee 37243

Phone: 615-741-228G
sos,tn.gov/businesses

Control #: 000146281
Filed: 03/0412025 06:35 PM

Tre Hargett
Secretary of State

Entity lnformation

Business Name: TELLICO VILLAGE PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION,
lNc.
Entity Type: Non-Prolit Corporation

Place of Formation: TENNESSEE

Principal Office Address:
112 CHOTACTR
USA, LOUDON, TN 37774-2886

Control Number: 000146281

Mailing Address:
112 CHOTACTR
USA, LOUDON, TN 37774-2886

Nature of Business (NAICS):
813990 - Other Similar Organizations (except Business, Professional, Labor, and Political Organizations)

Officer lnformation

ROBERT BRUNETTI

112 CHOTACTR
USA, LOUDON, TN 37774-2886
Director,President

STEVE SCHNEIDER

112 CHOTA CTR
usA, LouDoN, TN 37774-2886
D i re ctor,V i ce P resi d e nt

MIKE BRADDOCK

112 CHOTACTR
usA, LouDoN, TN 37774-2886
Director,Treasurer

JOHN ARGUELLES

112 CHOTACTR
usA, LouDoN, TN 37774-2886
Director,Secretary

Registered Agent lnformation

CHESTER PILLSBURY
112 CHOTACTR
LOUDON, TN 37774

Page 1 of 2

TVPOA Complaint – CA Exhibit B



Signature

Z By entering my name in the space provided beloq I certify that I am authorized to file this document on behalf of this entity, have
examined the document and, to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is true, corect and complete as of this day.

Signed Electronically: JESSICA JOHNSON

Title: FINANCIAL OPERATIONS MANAGER

Date:0310412025

Page 2 of 2

TVPOA Complaint – CA Exhibit B



Division of Business and Charitable Organizations
Department of State
State ofTennessee

312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue, 6th Floor
N ashville, Tennessee 37243

Phone: 615-741-2286
sos,tn.gov/

Tre Hargett
Secretary of State

Date:03/04/2025

Gustomer lnformation

JESSICAJOHNSON

TELLICO VILLAGE PROPERTY OWN ERS ASSOCIATION, IN C.

112 CHOTACENTER
LOUDON, TN 37774, USA

lnvoice: 2025-59988

2024 Annual ReportforTELL|COV|LLAGE PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, lNC. (Corporation
Filings)

82025043521 $ 20.00

Fee Total:

Payment Total:

Amount Due:

$ 20.00

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

Payment Details

Payment Method

Payment Type: Credit Gard

Check/Confirmation Number: 38931 99350

1Page 1

TVPOA Complaint – CA Exhibit B



j

i
I
II
I
I

i
I
l
I
l
il

I
I
I

I

{
I

I
I

I

r ! '|.:r ..1: 't ' ;i: 'l - .;!:

ittn)
stcfitI11til.{li ijt,iii.

EBt SEP tB pi,il2,0I

titPltlo lll
coottR co,tuulllTlEl lllc
uoAt0EFY. P.O.00r3"
icxroxvnu,rnr tutr

l{e, the unclerslgnedl nacural personsr having lhe.capaciEy
to contractr ito her6by associate-!o f,orm a corporatlon under
the provislons of th-e lawg o€ the staLe of tennesgee and

certify as followsl

ARTICLE I

ARIICI.ES OF INCORPORATION

OF

TELTICO VILLAGE PROPERTy OI{NERS ASSOCIATIoN' INC'

Nuq

the name of Ehe corporation is lellico Village Properly
o$ners AssociaLtonr rne.

ARTICIJE II

AgpRESg

The addrees oE the inilial' rnain office ancl principal'
pface-ot business of the Corporation is SuiLe 3, First
'tliEionui Bank Buililing, 200 Easb Broadi{ay, Lenoir City '
tennessee 3777L.

ARTICLE III
pqR0!I9s

The Corporaeion shall have perpetual exislence.

ARIICLE IV

rYPE

Ttre Corporauion is no! for profil.

{Page I}

ARTICT,E V

guRFosEs-&ND. PiE4Rs

The Corgoration does not conlenplaEe pecu-niary gain -orprofit, dir6ct or indirecb, to its members, and the specitrc
iurpoue- for wbich it is formed are lo provicle for. the.Pre-
ieruaelon of the values of the real estaLe brought t+ithin
irr"'Juii"ai.tion of the Corporauion f,rorn time to eine etithin
the ionfines of a residengiil ancl conmercial cornmunit'y being
eieated under lhe name of TelLico Village, Tennesseet and to
pronote the healbhr safely and welfar^e of the residenEs and

eomnrerclal oirnerg 
'within the above dlescrlbed properLy ancl

iny uaOiuions thereto as nay.hereafter be. brought' wibhin bhe

iuiisdiction o! t,he corporation anil for this purpose to:

(a) exercise a1l of the powers and privileges ancl . 
Lo

oerform all of the iluties anct obligations of Ehe Corporatlon
;; .et f orth in t'he Declaralion of Covenanb's anil
ResLricbions, hereinafLer called DeclaraEion' applicable -to
Tellico Vill"age, Tennessee, anil recortled or to be recorcled
i'n the Regis-terrs 0ffice'of Loudon coungy and'/or Monroe

Countyr Tennessee; and

(b) own, Iease, acguire, coosErucu, operaLe. and main-
!aj,n recreational faclliLies, greenbelb areas. private
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streets, utilitles, speclficatly incluilingr bu! not linited
!o, che rrater syBtem and sewer system, anal obher common
tacilities antl anenitiee, together with lmprovenenEs,
buitdings, sLructures, and personal properties lncidlenL
lhereto, hereinafter re!erretl to as iConnon Propertiesi,
and

(cl proviile f,or neceesary or appropriate munieipal ser-
vices rchich may lnclude, but is not, llmiLed to, fire antl
police probection, garbage and trash collecLlons, sanitary
tandtlllsr ancl the nalntenance of unkept lanilsi anal

(d) lixr levy, collect and enforce payment by any
Iawful meang of all charges and assessmenLs pursuant to the
terrls oE the Declaration and Lo pay all expenses in connec-
tion with lhe Conmon Properties lherefromr including all
office ancl olher expenses incldlent Lo the conducb of the
business oi lhe Associatiorrr together wlth alt licenses,
taxes, or goveronenLal charges levied or lmposeal againsb the
property of the Corporation; anil

(e) eonveyr sel!. lease, transf,er, iledicate for public
use or otberwise tlispose of real or personal properEy in
connection with Lhe affairs of lhe CorporaEion pursuanl to
the terms of the Declarationi and

{f} borrow money and with the assent of a rnajority of
the rnembers mortgage, pletiger cleecl in trusLr or hypolhecate
any or ail of igs reaL or personal property ln connecLion
wth the aifairs of the corporatlon pursuant to uhe terms of
the Declaratloni and

(gl detlicaLe, setl or branster all or any parb of the
Comloon Propereies bo any public or private agency,
auLhority, or utility for such purposes antl subject. bo such
cooilitions as may be agreed bo by the nenbers pursuant to
Lhe terms of the Declaration, proviilecl, however, no such
dedication or transfer shall be eftective unless approvecl by
a najoriLy of members, agreeing to such dedlication, sale or
Lransfer; and

{h} participate in aergers and consolldatioos wlth
other nonprofi.t corporations organized for Ehe same or eiml-
lar purposes, provideil t,haE anY such nerger slrall have the
assent of a rnajority of mernbers, agreeing bo such merger or
consolicla!ioni and

ti) serve as bhe Association uncler anci enforce any ancl
alt covenanLs, resLrictlons, ancl agreements in t'he
oeclaraLion applicable to Ehe Cornnunity; and

' (j) insofar as pernitt,ed by larr, to do any and all
other ehiogs uhab, in Lhe opinion of the Boardl of Direclors,
wiII promote the comnon benefit andl enjoyment of the resi-
dents of the CornmuniLy, inctuding, but not limi.ted t'o, main-
lenance of any public streets bherein.

ARTICLE VI

UEITBEESHLg

The Corporation shall issue no sbares
lciod d! nature tdhatsoever. The Eollowing
bership in the Corporation are hereby establ
lhe limiEauions herein set forbh:

of stock of any
classes of nem-
ished subject to

(Page 2l
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General Membership: Every person or entity, other than

Cooper Corununllies, Inc., herelnafter referred to as the
Developer, its succesgors anil assigns, or any Assoclate
Member or Coopershale Member, who is the recortl owneir of a
fee lnteresb in or nho is purchasing from the Developer a
fee or un<lividecl tee interest in a Lot or rriving Unit which
is subject Lo being asgegsed by the Corporabtonl BV€o though
such Assessment has not yet commenced, shail be a General
Menber oE the Corporahion. ceneral llenbers shall be
entitled Lo the privileges of Membership.

Associate Membership: In order to proviile operahlng
revenue to bhe Corporation and enhance utilization of the
recreational facilit,ies durlng the earLy developrnent of the
Ploject the Developer sha[ have L.000 CertlficaEes of
Associate llembership in Ehe CorporaLion. Such Associate
Memberships may be sold by hhe Developer anil shall not
require the ownershlp of a Lot or Living UniE. Any person
who owns or is purchasing fron the Developer an interest in
such Associate Memberships shall be enLlbledl to Lhe privile-
ges of blemberslrip in the Corporation except as hereinafter
provitlecl. At the expiration of fifteen (1.5) years from the
clate of recording of the Declaration or upon the completion
of five lhousand five huntlred (5,5001 Ltving Units,
whichever is later, the lrlernbers other than Associate t{enberg
shallp at Lhe next annual meeting of t.he Mernbership, vote on
the issue of conlinuing the Associate Membershlps. It a
majority of the tot,al votes cast favor continuing saiil
Associate Memberships, said Associabe Memberships shall con-
Einue for a perlod of five (5) years. At bhe expirabion of
saial term of years, there shall be anoEher like vo[e aE the
annual meeLing of Menbers ancl a Iike voLe every live (5)
years t,hereatber until, if ever, a majority of Ehe vogers
elect to terminate said Aesociate l,lemberships. Upon euch
bermination, hhe CorporaLion shall be reguirecl to promptly
purchase any such Associate Memberships which have been sold
by bhe Developer from the then Owners aL a price egual to
ten perceoL (10$) of bhe original purchase price of said
Associate Memberehip from Lhe Developer. Except as to bhe
Developerr Associate Menbershlps may be owned only by
nahural persons and are noL transferable other than between
spouses and shall lerminate in the evenL of the clea[h of
boLh spouses. Such Associate Memberships may also be ter-
minated by the Developer for failure ot the purchasing Owner
to pay in tull the purchase price therefor from the
Developer or any other breach of such conhract of purchase
in accordance with the terns of such contrac! of purchase or
by lhe mugual cancellation of such congracL of purchase by
ghe pareles therebo, and by the Corporatlon for the failure
to pay a'ny assessmenCs or obher amounts owed by the owner
therefor to the Corporation or for any oBher breach by such
oetner of bhis Declaration which failure to pay or breach
shall no[ be cured within six (6) nonths aft,er notice lo
such Owner by the CorporaLion. Notwithstanding anything
hereinabove to Lhe contrary, upon the termination of an
Associate Menbership, for any reason whaLsoever olher than
the voce of t,he CorporaLion Membership as herelnabove pro-
videil, Ehe Developer shall have the right, but not the obli-
gation, to create ancl sell an aildi tional Associate
Membership in the place thereof, without payment of any kind
by bhe Developer therefor, so long as the toLal of the
ouLsLandi,ng Associate Memberships iloes noL exceecl 1,000 antl
so long as such Associate Memberships have not been ter-
mina[ed by voue ot' t,he CorporaLion !.tembership as hereinabove
prov iclecl.

(Page 3 )
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cooperShare llernbership: A Coopershare Lot or Livlng
unic ii sub ject t'o the sarne assissment obllgatl-ons and
votinq riqhLi as any olher Loe or Living Unitr anil Owners
irt.id6t aie eneitted-co tbe same privileges oE l'teurbershlp in
ehe CorPoralion as obher Lot or Living Unit mners except as
nerelnbitow providetl. Every Person or entltyl othe-r than
Che Developei, nho is €he record owner o! a fee or unilivldeil
fee intereit'ln or who ls purchasing from the Developer a

fee or unitivideil fee interest in an interval ownershrp- use
p"iioa -t;-'t CooperShare .Lob or Living unit, which
boopershare llot or living Unit ts subJect to being assesseil
Uy ttre CorporaEtonr €vell Lhougb such assessnenl has not yeL

c-ommenced, shall be a Coopershare Menber. A Coopershare
iember shirl be ent,lbleil td all prlviteges of Membership as
oittei r,ou or Living unit owners- excepL thaE such shall be

ii*iu"a go thab perio<t of t'ime each- year consistenb with
such CooperShare interval ounership perioil.

Developer ltenbershlp: The Developer, its successorg an'l
assigns, inarf Ue a l'teniber of the coipoi-qei.o-n so long.as it
shali be the recortl owner of a fee or undlvicletl fee interest
i,i- 

"nv 
-t.i, l,ivinq Unit or Associate Memberehlp which is

suUiede to being ieseseeil by the Corporatlo-tl, . eY?n -bhough
suc[ assessmenti have not yel commencecl, antl shall furgher
be a Member unbil ih is paia in full for every such Lot,
iivinq Unic or Associate'Mernbershlp tt thall tull:- rhe
nevel6per, igs successors anil assigni, shatl be enbitlecl to
uhe privii.eges oi a uember for each such LoE, Li^ving- Unlt or
eJsoiiaue Mtmbershi.p andl shal! be further enLibled to bhe

issuance of lilemberehip guest carcle during such Membership to
the extent ib may deLm-necessary in ibs sole cliscreLion to
iisitu 1n the clev-elopment and sale of, Lotsr Living UniEs an'l
Associate MenbershiPs.

NoLwiLhstanding anYthing
these provisions f,or llembersh
soo or enLitY obher lhan
iotere6b mereIY aE securitY
gation.

herej,nabove Lo bhe cooLrarY'
Ip
bhe
for

(Page {}

are not exuended to any Per-
Developer who holde such

the perlormance of an obli-

ARTICLE VII

g,o!'IUq_EIGHrs

A1I bhose persons or entities as seL forth in
Arti;i; vr heretn'above, with Lhe exceptlon of Developer, !'ho
'trave 

paiO the Developer in full Eor' the purchase pri-c-e of
in"- l]ou, Living unit or Associabe Membershi.p shafr! be

eniiui"a' eo on6 (r) vote for each LoE, Living 0niL or
ejsociate Merr,ber;hip in which they hofi the interest
iequi.red for Members-hip by the above Arbicle VI. 9lhen more

Lnin one person anti./or- enlity holds. such interesEl the vole
toi-.o"tt io[, l,iving unit oi Associate Menbership sha]'I be

exerciseil as' chey imong Lhemselve; deLermine, bu! in no

evenb shall more than oie vote be cas! with respect t'o any
io"h tot, Living Unlt or Associate Membership.

The Developer shall be entitleil Lo two Q't votes f or
each- Lot, f,iving Unit or Associate Membership. in r''hich iL
ttoiat the intefest required for Menbership by the above

aiii"fu vr ontif such hime as ib shall cease to be a recorcl
o*n". thereof ancl shalI have been paid in fuII therefor'
fhe Oeveloper shall continue bo have the right to. cast. voLes

as aforesaid even bhough iE may have conlracted to seII the
iot, Living unit or Aisociate Membershlp or may have sane

under a nortgage or cleed of trust.
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Notwithstanding anythtng hereinabove to the contrary, a
CooperShare Lot or t,lvlng Unit shall enlitle lhe Owners
thereof Lo only one (L) vole sbere any Owner therein oLher
than the Developer shall be eotilled to participate in the
voting rights, anrl, in such even!, lhe Developer ahall par-
ticlpate in euch vote to lhe sane extent pro rata as other
0wners therein entilled to partlcipate in such vote.

For gurposes of cletermlnlng the volee alloi{ed
$hen Living Units are counted, the Lot or Lots upon
such Living Unibg are situated shall not be counbedl.

John A, CooE,er, ilr.

D. t{esson lucker

Larry tl. Garretu

Bella Vlsta Village, Arkarrsas

Hob Springs Village, Atkaosas

Bella VisLa Village, Arkansas

herein
which

r9 8?

1986

1985

of each of the

AREICTJE VIII

soARp oF plqEglo.8s

The affairs qf the Associabion shall be managed by a
Boarcl of three (31 Directors who need not be menbers of the
Association. A change in the number of Directors shall be
nacle only by amendment !,o bhese Articles oE Incorporation.
The oames and addresses of the persons constibuting the lni-
l.lal Board of Direcbors and lhe annual meetlng lo which
Lheir respective lerns shall extend are as followe:

IAI-IE AppBEgE TERM

Thereafter, Directors shalL be eLecled for a Lerrn of
t,hree (3) years and shall serve unLil Lheir respective suc-
cessors are elect,ed anil qualified. {he election process
shall be seb out in the By-Iraws of the As8ociation. The
eleslroo of DirecLors shall be aL 'Lhe annual meet,ing of the
nembershrp. Any r13s...t occurring cluring a term in bhe ini-
tial. or aoy subsequenL Boaral of Di.rectors nay be filled at a
rneeting of the Boartl of Directors by the af,flrmative vote of
a majorlty of Ehe remaining DirecLors. Any Directors
elecletl to fill a vacancy shall serve as such until the
expirabion of the term of the Direcbor whose posiblon he was
elecLed to fi11.

ARTICLE IX

INCORPORATORSI NAIIES AND PT,ACES OF RESIDENCE

the name and glace of resiclence
IncorporaLors are as f,ollons:

!B$9

itohn A. cooper. Jr.

D. Weston Tucker

Larry W. Garrett,

Pr,ggE..oF RESTDENCE

Bel"la Vtsta Village, Arkansas 72712

Hob. Springs village, Arkansas 71902

Bella Vista Village, Arkansas ?2712

(Page 5)
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The Corporation may be ilissolveil -orrlv 
t{ith the assent

qiven by the members-'"nlltrta to casE Leo-thirtls of lhe

Lob,a! votes. tlrittln -noiice ot a -prooosal bo diseolver

sebting f orth the tu"=.oo"-c-tt"t"f;; ;d'uhl tlisposi-rion to'be
matle oE bhe assetJ (;ii"n trtull - 

u in accorclance -with
nniicli:xf irereoil ttt"ii'-u" t"llecl to every member aL.least
ilii;il- 

-tlo'i- 
aays 

"-in- aaoun"" of . .anv action taken'

iil-.li.t i* ehat t not'iiv&f ii ai*i n r st', i nl,'i:llJ".tt ;l;;;-;;t ounerf as ileiine'l in the DecrarE
under the oectaraerJri'ina 

-deeoJ 
.applicable to his property

unless made in ""'"ori"i""--*itf, 
-'ttr. provistons of such

Declarabion antl deecls.

ARTICLE X

DISSOT,UTION

(Page 5)

ARIICT,E XI

llgggqltloN oq-ggggEs-gPqN-q!9s9liurr0N

UDoo the drssolutlon of the CorgoraLion' bhe Boarcl'of

oi'eX[Irs ";;"tr;-;f i"i- 
-p"vltg. 

ir. ma'kin9- prcvis-ion f:-t" 
, !1"

;;ffi;--"i'- ar-i oe 
-ine iiatiriui.s of rhe corporaLlon,

Hlffi; Ji "rr ot-une-assecs of the. corgoration exclusiveJ.y

il;,ii; Jiti"*.- "i'it'"-t"1p"t"t'l-"1. 
uv.dlaicat'ins same bo an

"ii'iiii'..""lotri" "e;;q 6r. .uriritv- -to 
be devotecl to pur-

ooses as nearly as iiaciicable the sane as those to tlhich

[;;;"";;"";;;1tA fo G auuot'ed bv the corporacion or' tn

;ii;'";;;; 
"-o-"T 

a"ai""iion is.ieeused acceptal""' to 
-"T:1"?::

ilieii,-i"tpolieion, Rssociation' trusb or obher organlzanron

!i""i"a- ",ia 
-op"t"i"a-litir'o"iveiv ror pur'oses as sharr aL

the bime quar i f v "t 
-"J:;;;;i -o-ig*i'" lioi or- orsanillligl:

;;1.;-;;"1-ron sis or-'tnE iniurnai Revunue codle oE 1954 (or

iiil-'"oit-t-""ponaing pto-uilion "r any -Euture uniled suates

rncernal Revenue t""-il--iJ'the.ioira, ot DirecLors shalr

determine. nny .o!ii"assets not so disnoseil of shall be

digoosed oE bv an ;;t;;i;"'"-Jotl-of E'he count'v in which

il:1".il"i;"i' iiili.' or- uhe corporahion is theo locatecl'

exclrrsively ror soci fotpot"t -oi -t? such organizabion. or

organizaEion" ". .u-iil ""ooic .n"n determine which are orga-

iii"a ina operaued excrusivery for such purposes'

ARTICLE XII

ggDllr oIAL- PEggIs I 999

Seccion I. lilo parL of che neE earninqs of the Corpor-

arion shatt inure uo''c'h? i"""iiit'Ji, or-.be ?isuribuuable to,
iLs members, trustees, 

-officers, or- -oLher 
privaLe personst

except thab Ehe a:";p;;;-ti;;--:l:tt,^be 
-auLhorizecl and

empowered co pay reiso'nable compensa.tion f,or services ren-

dered ancl to make puy-ti"ni* una digtributions in furtherance

of the purposes ".t ioiit'-in etii"r" v hereoE' No subsLan-

;;";";";;-'.i-it-e aculviiies or the corporabioo shall be Lhe

:liili*""i1,;ii"i;i*':"-':Fu';,"::li:i'*ii'.';"li'c"il
cicipate !n, ot ini"Ju"i"- in--tincruainc the oublishing or

disLiiburion or scuiJ,iJiiJl 
'"irv'i-Jiiti;;i campa-ien on behalE

;;";;;-;;;iiiit" ]"i"-i"uii".-'offic"' Nocwithstantlins anv

oLher provision of Jt".i-"ili"Ils, the.corPoration :!ili,"::
;;;;y ;; anv ouher.a"iiuiti"t nos permiLbed f,o be carrred on

(a! bY a corporatr;-;;;; iiotn-r"a"t"r income Lax under

seccion 528 0i ilre-'rricein'at n"u"no* code of 1954 (or lhe

i
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corresponcling provision gf any future Uniteil states Inlernal
Revenui r,aw)1 

-or (b) by'any other cornparable or applicable
section of the Internal Revenue Cotie of 1954 (or tbe
correspooding provision of any fuLure Unitedl Stateg Inlernal
Revenqe Law,.

Section 2. AII obher provisions concerning the
governance andl regulation of the inLernal affairs of bhe
ieeociagion shaMe as se! f orth in the hereinabove
menbioned Declaration of Covenants and Restriclions and the
By-ta$s or Ehe Associat,ion.

ARSICLE XIII

AUEESMEN!9.

These Aruicles may be amended by majoriEy vote at any
meebing of bhe Boarcl- of Directorc. A copy of all such
amenilrn6nts shall be filed sith the tennessee Secretary of
SbaLe within t'hirty (30) days after bheir passage ancl such
amendnents shall not become effective unLil go fileil.

ARTICLE IIIV

IIgg!,rN!EIg{rr9!

fhe Board of DirecLors of this CorporaLion are
authorj.zed aL any tlme, or f,rom llme lo Limar to approve
inclernnification of direcLors, officers, or oLher persons to
the fuII exLent pernlLLeal by lhe latrs of bhe staEe of
Tenoessee at the Lime in effectr wit'h resgect bo pastr pre-
seot or future transaceions of this Corporali.on.

IN t{ITNESS iSHEREOFT Lhe IncorporaLors hereby apply to
Lhe SEaLe of Tennessee Eor the CharLer of IncorporaLion for
Lhe porposes and grovisions set out in the foregoing instru-
menu- and have beieunLo set Ehelr hancls Uhis 18th - day ot
-.$ep9gp!er____. terj__.

A

Larry

(Page 7)
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Fact Fact Note

Loudon 
County, 
Tennessee

Population estimates, July 1, 2024, (V2024) 62,129

Population estimates base, April 1, 2020, (V2024) 54,891

Population, percent change - April 1, 2020 (estimates base) to 
July 1, 2024, (V2024) 13.20%
Population, Census, April 1, 2020 54,886
Population, Census, April 1, 2010 48,556
Persons under 5 years, percent 4.70%
Persons under 18 years, percent 18.70%
Persons 65 years and over, percent 28.10%
Female persons, percent 50.60%
White alone, percent 94.90%
Black alone, percent (a) (a) 1.70%

American Indian and Alaska Native alone, percent (a) (a) 0.70%
Asian alone, percent (a) (a) 1.00%

Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander alone, percent (a) (a) 0.20%
Two or More Races, percent 1.50%
Hispanic or Latino, percent (b) (b) 10.50%

White alone, not Hispanic or Latino, percent 85.50%
Veterans, 2019-2023 4,108

Foreign-born persons, percent, 2019-2023 6.10%
Housing Units, July 1, 2024, (V2024) 27,481

Owner-occupied housing unit rate, 2019-2023 80.90%

Median value of owner-occupied housing units, 2019-2023 $292,600 
Median selected monthly owner costs - with a mortgage, 2019-
2023 $1,465 
Median selected monthly owner costs -without a mortage, 2019-
2023 $441 
Median gross rent, 2019-2023 $995 
Building Permits, 2024 608
Households, 2019-2023 23,438
Persons per household, 2019-2023 2.41
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Living in the same house 1 year ago, percent of persons age 1 
year+ ,  2019-2023 93.10%

Language other than English spoken at home, percent of persons 
age 5 years+, 2019-2023 7.60%

Households with a computer, percent, 2019-2023 94.00%
Households with a broadband Internet subscription, percent, 
2019-2023 89.40%
High school graduate or higher, percent of persons age 25 
years+, 2019-2023 88.90%
Bachelor's degree or higher, percent of persons age 25 years+, 
2019-2023 28.60%

With a disability, under age 65 years, percent, 2019-2023 9.70%

Persons without health insurance, under age 65 years, percent 11.20%
In civilian labor force, total, percent of population age 16 
years+, 2019-2023 54.30%
In civilian labor force, female, percent of population age 16 
years+, 2019-2023 48.70%

Total accommodation and food services sales, 2022 ($1,000) (c) 103,643
Total health care and social assistance receipts/revenue, 2022 
($1,000) (c) 187,628
Total transportation and warehousing receipts/revenue, 2022 
($1,000) (c) 204,496
Total retail sales, 2022 ($1,000) (c) 833,317
Total retail sales per capita, 2022 (c) $14,307 
Mean travel time to work (minutes), workers age 16 years+, 
2019-2023 24

Median households income (in 2023 dollars), 2019-2023 $80,296 
Per capita income in past 12 months (in 2023 dollars), 2019-
2023 $42,817 
Persons in poverty, percent 10.50%
Total employer establishments, 2022 1,026
Total employment, 2022 14,766
Total annual payroll, 2022 ($1,000) 722,952

Total employment, percent change, 2021-2022 3.90%
Total nonemployer establishments, 2023 4,723
All employer firms, Reference year 2022 741
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Men-owned employer firms, Reference year 2022 413

Women-owned employer firms, Reference year 2022 144

Minority-owned employer firms, Reference year 2022 S

Nonminority-owned employer firms, Reference year 2022 539

Veteran-owned employer firms, Reference year 2022 48

Nonveteran-owned employer firms, Reference year 2022 536
Population per square mile, 2020 239.4
Population per square mile, 2010 211.8
Land area in square miles, 2020 229.27
Land area in square miles, 2010 229.22
FIPS Code "47105"

NOTE: FIPS Code values are enclosed in quotes to ensure leading zeros remain intact.

Value Notes
None

Fact Notes
(a) Includes persons reporting o
(b) Hispanics may be of any ra
(c) Economic Census - Puerto R

Value Flags
D Suppressed to avoid disclos
F Fewer than 25 firms
FN Footnote on this item in pla
NA Not available
S Suppressed; does not meet p
X Not applicable
Z Value greater than zero but 
- Either no or too few sample
N Data for this geographic are
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Value Note 
for Loudon 
County, 
Tennessee
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only one race
ce, so also are included in applicable race categories
Rico data are not comparable to U.S. Economic Census data

sure of confidential information

ace of data

publication standards

less than half unit of measure shown
e observations were available to compute an estimate, or a ratio of medians cannot be calculated because o
ea cannot be displayed because the number of sample cases is too small.
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one or both of the median estimates falls in the lowest or upper interval of an open ended distribution.
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STATE OF TENNESSEE 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION 

DIVISION OF WATER RESOURCES  
William R. Snodgrass - Tennessee Tower 

312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue, 11th Floor 
Nashville, Tennessee  37243-1102 

August 31, 2023 

Mr. Chet Pillsbury, TVPOA CEO 

TVPOA 

e-copy: cpillsbury@tvpoa.org

112 Chota Center

Loudon, TN 37774

Re: State Operating Permit No. SOP-89079 

Tellico Village Property Owners Association, Inc. 

Loudon, Loudon County, Tennessee 

Dear Mr. Pillsbury: 

In accordance with the provisions of the Tennessee Water Quality Control Act, Tennessee 

Code Annotated (T.C.A.), Sections 69-3-101 through 69-3-120, the Division of Water 

Resources hereby issues the enclosed State Operating Permit. The continuance and/or 

reissuance of this Permit is contingent upon your meeting the conditions and requirements 

as stated therein. 

Please be advised that a petition for permit appeal may be filed, pursuant to T.C.A. Section 

69-3-105, subsection (i), by the permit applicant or by any aggrieved person who participated

in the public comment period or gave testimony at a formal public hearing whose appeal is

based upon any of the issues that were provided to the commissioner in writing during the

public comment period or in testimony at a formal public hearing on the permit application.

Additionally, for those permits for which the department gives public notice of a draft permit, 

any permit applicant or aggrieved person may base a permit appeal on any material change 

to conditions in the final permit from those in the draft, unless the material change has been 

subject to additional opportunity for public comment.  

Any petition for permit appeal under this subsection (i) shall be filed with the technical 

secretary of the Water Resources Board within thirty (30) days after public notice of the 

commissioner's decision to issue or deny the permit. A copy of the filing should also be sent 

to TDEC’s Office of General Counsel. 
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TDEC has activated a new email address to accept appeals electronically. If you wish to file 

an appeal, you may do so by emailing the appeal and any attachments to 

TDEC.Appeals@tn.gov. If you file an appeal electronically, you do not have to send a paper 

copy.  If you have questions about your electronic filing, you can call 615-532-0131. Electronic 

filing is encouraged, but not required.  

 

If you have questions, please contact the Knoxville Environmental Field Office at 1-888-891-

TDEC; or, at this office, please contact Mrs. Tricia Swaney at (615) 946-6803 or by E-mail at 

Tricia.Swaney@tn.gov. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Vojin Janjić 

Manager, Water-based Systems 
 

Enclosure 

 

cc/ec: Permit File  

Knoxville Environmental Field Office 

 Mr. Clayton Taylor, Public Works Director, Tellico Village POA, ctaylor@tvpoa.org  

 Mr. Kevin Hamil, Tellico Village POA, khamil@tvpoa.org  

 Mr. John Davis, Assistant Manager, Loudon Utilities Board, john.davis@loudonutilities.org  

 Mr. Carl Plaugher, Manager, TASS- NFWTF, plaugher@tassonline.org  
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CN-0729  RDA 2366 

 

 
State of Tennessee Operating Permit 

Permit Number SOP-89079 

Issued by  

State of Tennessee 

Department of Environment and Conservation 

Division of Water Resources  

William R. Snodgrass - Tennessee Tower 

312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue, 11th Floor 

Nashville, Tennessee 37243-1102 

 

In accordance with the provisions of Tennessee Code Annotated Section §69-3-108 and regulations 

promulgated pursuant thereto, permission is hereby granted to: 

 

Permittee:   Tellico Village Property Owners Association, Inc. 

 

for the operation of: a municipal wastewater collection system 

from a facility located at: 112 Chota Center, Loudon, Loudon County, Tennessee 

 

This permit shall become effective on: November 1, 2023 

This permit shall expire on:   October 31, 2028 

Issuance date:    August 31, 2023 

 

 

_________________________________ 

for Jennifer Dodd 

Director 
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PART 1 
 

1. GENERAL PERMIT REQUIREMENTS 

The Tellico Village Property Owners Association, Inc. is authorized to collect and transport 

untreated municipal wastewater to Loudon Utilities Board and Tellico Area Services System. 

This permit is issued as a result of the application filed on 7-Jun-23 with the office of the 

Tennessee Division of Water Resources and in conformity with approved plans, 

specifications, and other data submitted to the Department in support of the above 

application, all of which are filed with and considered as part of this permit, together with 

the following named conditions and requirements. 

 

The operation of this collection system will be governed by the following requirements: 

 

The wastewater collection system shall be operated under the supervision of a certified 

operator in accordance with the public Water Environmental Health Act of 1984 and the rules 

promulgated thereunder.  

 

All pump/lift stations shall be inspected on a daily basis. The inspector shall note the date, 

time, and inspector’s initials in a bound logbook. Alternately, the permittee may provide 

telemetering devices for any pump station in order to reduce the frequency of actual 

inspections.  

 

Daily flow data collected at the tie-in/discharge point shall be reported quarterly to the 

Division of Water Resources, Knoxville Environmental Field Office. Reports shall be submitted 

or postmarked no later than 15 days after the completion of the reporting period and shall 

be submitted electronically via MyTDEC Forms, if available, or to the following address: 

 
STATE OF TENNESSEE 

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION 
DIVISION OF WATER RESOURCES 

Knoxville Environmental Field Office 

3711 Middlebrook Pike 

Knoxville, Tennessee 37921 

 

This permit does not relieve the permittee from any requirements of the municipality or 

utility where the sewage is ultimately disposed. The permittee must obtain approval for the 

connection from that municipality or utility and must comply with all their requirements 

including pretreatment regulations, the exclusion of storm and other extraneous water, etc. 
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PART 2 
 

2. STANDARD CONDITIONS 

2.1. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 Duty to Comply 

The permittee shall comply with all conditions of this permit. Any permit 

noncompliance constitutes a violation of the Water Quality Control Act and is 

grounds for enforcement action; for permit termination, revocation and 

reissuance, or modification; or denial of a permit renewal application. 

 

 Duty to Reapply 

The permittee is not authorized to discharge after the expiration date of this 

permit. In order to receive authorization to discharge beyond the expiration date, 

the permittee shall submit such information and forms as are required to the 

Division Director no later than 180 days prior to the expiration date. Such forms 

shall be properly signed and certified. 

 

 Proper Operation and Maintenance 

The permittee shall, at all times, properly operate and maintain all facilities and 

systems (and related appurtenances) for collection and treatment which are 

installed or used by the permittee to achieve compliance with the terms and 

conditions of this permit. Proper operation and maintenance also includes 

adequate laboratory and process controls and appropriate quality assurance 

procedures. This provision requires the operation of backup or auxiliary facilities 

or similar systems, which are installed by a permittee only when the operation is 

necessary to achieve compliance with the conditions of the permit.  

 

Additionally, for collection systems the following conditions apply: 

 

1) Collection system components of a sewerage system that are designed to 

collect, treat, or convey sewage to a treatment process shall be designed in 

accordance with accepted engineering practice as prescribed in Chapter 0400-

40-02. 

2) Low pressure pumps, low pressure tanks, septic tank effluent pumps (STEP), 

STEP tanks, and septic tank effluent gravity (STEG) tanks are integral to the 

treatment and conveyance of sewage in a low-pressure system design, and 

shall be owned or under control of the municipality, other body of 

government, public utility district, or a privately owned public utility 

demonstrating lawful jurisdiction over the service area. 
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3) Except as provided in paragraph (2) above, all collection system components 

regulated by this chapter shall be owned by a municipality, other body of 

government, public utility district, or a privately owned public utility 

demonstrating lawful jurisdiction over the service area. In limited 

circumstances, a corporation with a demonstrated capacity to provide the 

managerial and operational resources necessary to maintain its sewerage 

system may be permitted to operate a collection system to support a business 

activity (e.g., a resort). 

 

 Right of Entry 

The permittee shall allow the Commissioner, or an authorized representative, 

upon the presentation of credentials, to: 

 

a) Enter upon the permittee’s premises where a regulated facility or activity is 

located or conducted, or where records shall be kept under the conditions of 

this permit; 

 

b) Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records that shall be kept 

under the conditions of this permit; 

 

c) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring 

and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under 

this permit; and  

 

d) Sample or monitor at reasonable times for the purposes of assuring permit 

compliance or as otherwise authorized by the Director. 

 

 Availability of Reports 

All reports and data shall be kept for a minimum of three years. 

 

 Property Rights 

This permit does not convey property rights of any sort, or any exclusive privilege.  

 

 Severability 

The provisions of this permit are severable. If any provision of this permit due to 

any circumstance is held invalid, then the application of such provision to other 

circumstances and to the remainder of this permit shall not be affected thereby. 
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 Other Information 

If the permittee becomes aware of failure to submit any relevant facts in a permit 

application, or of submission of incorrect information in a permit application or in 

any report to the Director, then the permittee shall promptly submit such facts or 

information. 

 

2.2. CHANGES AFFECTING THE PERMIT 

 Permit Modification, Revocation, or Termination 

a) This permit may be modified, revoked and reissued, or terminated for cause. 

The filing of a request by the permittee for a permit modification, revocation 

and reissuance, or termination, or a notification of planned changes or 

anticipated noncompliance does not stay any permit condition. Causes for 

such permit action include but are not limited to the following: 

 

i. Violation of any terms or conditions of the permit; 

ii. Obtaining a permit by misrepresentation or failure to disclose fully all 

relevant facts; and 

iii. A change in any condition that requires either a temporary or 

permanent reduction or elimination of the permitted discharge. 

 

b) The permittee shall furnish to the Director, within a reasonable time, any 

information which the Director may request to determine whether cause 

exists for modifying, revoking and reissuing, or terminating this permit, or to 

determine compliance with this permit. The permittee shall also furnish to the 

Director, upon request, copies of records required to be kept by this permit. 

 

 Change of Ownership 

Individual permits are not transferable to any person except after notice to the 

Commissioner, as specified below. The Commissioner may require modification 

or revocation and reissuance of the permit to change the name of the permittee. 

 

a) The permittee notifies the Director of the proposed transfer at least 30 days 

in advance of the proposed transfer date.  

 

b) The notice includes a written agreement between the existing and new 

permittees containing a specified date for transfer of permit responsibility, 

coverage, and liability between them.  

 

c) The permittee shall provide the following information to the Director in their 

formal notice of intent to transfer ownership:  
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i. The permit number of the subject permit;  

ii. The effective date of the proposed transfer;  

iii. The name, address, and contact information of the transferor;  

iv. The name, address, and contact information of the transferee;  

v. The names of the responsible parties for both the transferor and 

transferee;  

vi. A statement that the transferee assumes responsibility for the 

subject permit;  

vii. A statement that the transferor relinquishes responsibility for the 

subject permit;  

viii. The signatures of the responsible parties for both the transferor and 

transferee pursuant to the signatory requirements of subparagraph 

(i) of Rule 0400-40-05-.07(2); and  

ix. A statement regarding any proposed modifications to the facility, its 

operations, or any other changes, which might affect the permit, 

limits and conditions contained in the permit. 

 

 Change of Mailing Address 

The permittee shall promptly provide to the Director written notice of any change 

of mailing address. In the absence of such notice, the original address of the 

permittee will be assumed to be correct. 

 

2.3. NONCOMPLIANCE 

 Effect of Noncompliance 

All discharges shall be consistent with the terms and conditions of this permit. Any 

permit noncompliance constitutes a violation of applicable State and Federal laws 

and is grounds for enforcement action, permit termination, or denial of permit 

reissuance. 

 

 Reporting of Noncompliance 

a) 24-hour Reporting: 

 

In the case of any noncompliance, or any release (whether or not caused by 

improper operation and maintenance), which could cause a threat to human 

health or the environment, the permittee shall:  

 

i. Report the noncompliance or release to the Commissioner within 24 hours 

from the time the permittee becomes aware of the circumstances.  
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ii. Submit a written report within five days of the time the permittee becomes 

aware of the noncompliance. The permittee shall provide the following 

information:  

 

1. A description of and the cause of the noncompliance or release;  

 

2. The period of noncompliance or release, including start and end 

dates and times i.e. duration or, if not corrected, the anticipated 

time the noncompliance or release is expected to continue;  

 

3. The steps being taken to reduce, eliminate, and prevent recurrence 

of the noncompliance or release; and  

 

4. For POTWs, domestic wastewater treatment plants, or collection 

systems, reporting any dry weather overflow, wet weather overflow, 

dry weather release, wet weather release, combined sewer 

overflow, or bypass, this written report must also include the 

following: 

 

I. Type of event; 

II. Type of sewer overflow, release, or bypass structure (e.g., 

manhole, combined sewer overflow outfall); 

III. Estimated volume (gallons); 

IV. Types of human health and environmental impacts;  

V. Location (latitude and longitude);  

VI. Estimated duration (hours); 

VII. The next downstream pump station (for overflows and 

releases only); and  

VIII. The name of receiving water (if applicable).  

 

iii. For overflows and releases, the report required by a) ii. Shall be submitted 

electronically via MyTDEC Forms. 

 

b) Other Noncompliance. 

 

i. All permittees shall report each instance of noncompliance or any release 

(whether or not caused by improper operation and maintenance), not 

reported under sub-part a) at the time of submitting the next routine 

monitoring report, including all information required by sub-parts a) ii. 1-

3.  
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ii. In addition to the information required by part i of this sub-part, the 

permittee shall submit a written report containing the information 

required by sub-part a) ii. 4. If these events are caused by an extreme 

weather event, the Commissioner may provide a written waiver of some or 

all of these reporting requirements.  

 

 Overflows and Releases 

a) Sanitary sewer overflows, including dry-weather overflows and wet weather 

overflows, are prohibited.  

 

b) Releases caused by improper operation and maintenance, which is to be 

determined by the Commissioner based on the totality of the circumstances, 

are prohibited.  

 

c) The permittee shall operate the collection, transmission, and treatment 

system so as to avoid sanitary sewer overflows and releases due to improper 

operation or maintenance. A “release” may be due to improper operation or 

maintenance of the collection system or may be due to other cause(s).  

 

d) The permittee shall take all reasonable steps to minimize any adverse impact 

associated with overflows and releases. 

 

e) No new or additional flows shall be added upstream of any point in the 

collection, transmission, or treatment system that experiences greater than 5 

sanitary sewer overflows and/or releases per year1 or would otherwise 

overload any portion of the system. Unless there is specific enforcement 

action to the contrary, the permittee is relieved of this requirement after: 

 

1) An authorized representative of the Commissioner of the Department 

of Environment and Conservation has approved an engineering report 

and construction plans and specifications prepared in accordance with 

accepted engineering practices for correction of the problem; 

2) The correction work is underway; and 

3) The cumulative, peak-design flows potentially added from new 

connections and line extensions upstream of any chronic overflow or 

release point are less than or proportional to the amount of inflow and 

infiltration removal documented upstream from that point. 

 

 
1 This includes dry weather overflows, wet weather overflows, dry weather releases and wet weather 

releases. 

TVPOA Complaint - CA Exhibit I



Tellico Village Property Owners Association, Inc. 

State Operating Permit SOP-89079 

Page 8 

 

 

The inflow and infiltration reduction must be measured by the permittee using 

practices that are customary in the environmental engineering field and reported 

to the EFO. The data measurement period shall be sufficient to account for 

seasonal rainfall patterns and seasonal groundwater table elevations. 

 

f) In the event that chronic sanitary sewer overflows or releases have occurred 

from a single point in the collection system for reasons that may not warrant 

the self-imposed moratorium of the actions identified in this paragraph, the 

permittee may request a meeting with Division EFO staff to petition for a 

waiver based on mitigating evidence. 

 

 Adverse Impact 

The permittee shall take all reasonable steps to minimize any adverse impact to 

the waters of Tennessee resulting from noncompliance with this permit, including 

such accelerated or additional monitoring as necessary to determine the nature 

and impact of the noncomplying discharge. It shall not be a defense for the 

permittee in an enforcement action that it would have been necessary to halt or 

reduce the permitted activity in order to maintain compliance with the conditions 

of this permit. 

 

2.4. LIABILITIES 

 Civil and Criminal Liability 

The permittee is subject to civil and criminal liability for violation of this permit. 

Notwithstanding this permit, the permittee shall remain liable for any damages 

sustained by the State of Tennessee, including but not limited to fish kills and 

losses of aquatic life and/or wildlife, as a result of the discharge of wastewater to 

any surface or subsurface waters. Additionally, notwithstanding this Permit, it 

shall be the responsibility of the permittee to conduct its wastewater treatment 

and/or discharge activities in a manner such that public or private nuisances or 

health hazards will not be created. 

 

 Liability Under State Law 

Nothing in this permit shall be construed to preclude the institution of any legal 

action or relieve the permittee from any responsibilities, liabilities, or penalties 

established pursuant to any applicable state law. 

 

2.5. PROHIBITIVE DISCHARGE STANDARDS 

1) Under no circumstances shall the permittee allow introduction of the following 

wastes into the waste treatment system: 
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a. Pollutants which create a fire or explosion hazard in the POTW; 

 

b. Pollutants which will cause corrosive structural damage to the POTW, 

but in no case discharges with pH lower than 5.0 unless the works is 

specifically designed to accommodate such discharges; 

 

c. Solid or viscous pollutants in amounts which will cause obstruction to 

the flow in the POTW resulting in interference;  

 

d. Any pollutant, including oxygen demanding pollutants (BOD, etc.) 

released in a discharge at a flow rate and/or pollutant concentration 

which will cause interference with the POTW; 

 

e. Heat in amounts which will inhibit biological activity in the POTW 

resulting in interference, but in no case heat in such quantities that the 

temperature at the POTW treatment plant exceeds 40° C (104° F) unless 

the Division, upon request of the POTW, approves alternate 

temperature limits; 

 

f. Any priority pollutant in amounts that will contaminate the treatment 

works sludge; 

 

g. Petroleum oil, nonbiodegradable cutting oil, or products of mineral oil 

origin in amounts that will cause interference or pass through; 

 

h. Pollutants which result in the presence of toxic gases, vapors, or fumes 

within the POTW in a quantity that may cause acute worker health and 

safety problems; or 

 

i. Any trucked or hauled pollutants except at discharge points designated 

by the POTW.  

 

2) The permittee shall notify the Division of any of the following changes in user 

discharge to the system no later than 30 days prior to change of discharge: 

 

a. New introductions into such works of pollutants from any source which 

would be a new source as defined in Section 306 of the Act if such 

source were discharging pollutants; 

 

b. New introductions of pollutants into such works from a source which 

would be subject to Section 301 of the “Federal Water Pollution Control 

Act as Amended” if it were discharging such pollutants; or 
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c. A substantial change in volume or character of pollutants being 

introduced into such works by a source already discharging pollutants 

into such works at the time the permit is issued. 

 

This notice will include information on the quantity and quality of the 

wastewater introduced by the new source into the publicly owned treatment 

works, and on any anticipated impact on the effluent discharged from such 

works. 

 

2.6. PLACEMENT OF SIGNS 

The permittee shall place and maintain a sign at each overflow/release point in 

the collection system. For the purposes of this requirement, any point that has 

had a total of five(5) or more overflows plus releases in the last year must be so 

posted. The sign(s) should be clearly visible to the public.  The minimum sign size 

should be two feet by two feet (2' x 2') with one inch (1") letters. The sign should 

be made of durable material and have a white background with black letters. 

 

Unpermitted overflow/release point: 

 

 UNTREATED WASTEWATER DISCHARGE POINT 

 Tellico Village Property Owners Association, Inc. 

(865) 458-5408 

 SOP Permit NO. SOP-89079 

 TENNESSEE DIVISION OF WATER RESOURCES 

 1-888-891-8332 ENVIRONMENTAL FIELD OFFICE - Knoxville 

 

No later than sixty (60) days from permit issuance, the permittee shall have the 

above sign(s) on display in the location(s) specified. 

 

2.7. INTER-JURISDICTIONAL AGREEMENT PROGRAM 

The permittee shall maintain a valid contract for service with Loudon Utilities 

Board and Tellico Area Services System. 

 

This requirement will apply upon the effective date of the permit, and the quantity 

and quality of flows from the permittee’s collection to Loudon Utilities Board and 

Tellico Area Services System shall be consistent with the terms of the service 

agreement. A copy of the service agreement shall be sent to the Division, Knoxville 

EFO, within 90 days of the effective date of this permit.  
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On each quarterly flow report submitted to the Knoxville EFO, the permittee shall 

itemize any/all terms of the service agreement that limit or surcharge flow 

quantity or wastewater quality.  For each itemized term of the agreement that 

limits or surcharges flow quantity or quality, the permittee shall report the 

following:  1) the date(s) that each itemized limit was exceeded during the 

quarterly reporting period, 2) the reportable value and unit associated with each 

date of occurrence and whether the value is measured or estimated, 3) the known 

or suspected cause(s) of each occurrence, and 4) how each reported occurrence 

was, or will, be addressed by the permittee. 

 

2.8. SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS FOR SEWERAGE SYSTEMS OWNED AND OPERATED BY 

NON-PUBLIC ENTITIES 

Sewerage systems owned and operated by a homeowner association, a property 

owner association, or any other non-public association (hereinafter referred to as 

association) of sewer system users must meet the following requirements to 

demonstrate continuing financial security. Three categories of financial security 

shall be demonstrated:  

 

(1) an Operating and Maintenance (O&M) Fund to address routine operation 

and maintenance,  

(2) a Reserve Fund to address major capital expenditures, and  

(3) a Bond, or equivalent financial security, to satisfy the requirements of 

Section 69-3-122 of the Water Quality Control Act. 

 

The association shall grant authority to the officers of the association, via the 

governing documents of the association and/or its bylaws, to levy and collect 

sewer user fees, assessments, tap fees, or other fees in an amount to be 

determined by the Board of Directors of the association to fund the three 

categories of financial security. Each purchaser of a unit using the sewer system 

shall be assessed such fees. Should the levied assessments fail to meet the 

requirements listed below for each of the financial security categories, the 

association shall levy additional fees as necessary to meet the requirements as 

specified this permit. 

 

 Operating and Maintenance (O&M) Fund 

The association shall properly operate and maintain the collection system in 

accordance with the provisions of this permit and all applicable federal and state 

regulations and law. Funds required to properly operate and maintain the system 

shall include monies to fund all routine operation, maintenance, principle and 

interest of debt service and other routine costs. The association shall establish an 

O&M Fund as follows: 
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O&M Fund Accounting: The O&M fund shall be separately accounted for in the 

financial management and accountability of the system. The O&M fund shall 

exist for the anticipated life of the collection and/or treatment system. 

 

O&M Fund Reporting: The association shall maintain records of the operation 

and maintenance costs of the sewerage system. The association shall make all 

relevant information available to the Division upon request.  

 

 Reserve Fund 

A dedicated portion of the revenue from fees and assessments of the association 

shall be placed in an escrow account to establish the reserve fund. Expenditures 

from the reserve fund shall be restricted to capital expenses and may not be 

applied to normal operating expenses in the ordinary course of business. 

 

The association shall create, maintain, and use reserve funds for the purpose of 

capital expenditures to repair or replace portions of the sewerage system. Such 

repair or replacement may occur in the event of damage, destruction or other 

repair or replacement that is not considered to be normal maintenance. It is also 

the purpose of this fund to be used to replace any portion of the sewerage system 

that reaches the end of its useful life. The reserve funds may also be used to pay 

any penalties, fines, or damage assessments. In determining the adequate 

amount of reserve funds, the association must estimate the life expectancy of the 

components of the sewerage system, and the replacement cost of these 

components. Replacement cost estimates shall be updated at a minimum of once 

each five years at the time of permit renewal and shall be made available to the 

Division upon request. 

 

Reserve Fund Accounting: The reserve fund shall be separately accounted for in the 

financial management and accountability of the system. The reserve fund shall 

exist for the anticipated life of the collection and/or treatment system. 

 

 Bond Fund 

The association shall obtain, maintain, and demonstrate adequate bond or other 

financial security instrument to satisfy the requirements of §69-3-122 of the Water 

Quality Control Act (WQCA). The purpose of this bond is to provide a source of 

funding to the State for temporary operation of the system in the event of 

abandonment or noncompliance. The bond shall be established in an amount 

equal to the amount of the reserve fund plus 2 years of operation and 

maintenance costs up to the limit defined in §69-3-122(b) of the WQCA. The bond 

shall be maintained for a term that is not less than the anticipated life of the 
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collection and/or treatment system. The association may obtain a Surety Bond, 

Insurance and Risk Retention Group Coverage, Letter of Credit, or other financial 

security acceptable to the Division of Financial Assurance and Business Process 

Improvement (DFA) in accordance with the following conditions: 

 

a) DFA must be notified within 30 days, should the term of the security be 

canceled, extended, the terms changed, or the association obtains 

alternative security. 

b) Conditions for bond or financial security forfeiture may be caused by 

any of the following: 

i. Failure to properly transfer or renew the permit and/or 

bond; 

ii. Failure to employ a certified operator for more than 30 days; 

iii. Chronic permit violations and/or violations not corrected 

within 30 days of notice of such violations from the Division; 

iv. Failure to properly maintain the collection or treatment 

system such that the system cannot be properly operated; 

v. Operation of the collection or treatment system in such a 

manner as to create a public nuisance, health hazard, or 

violation of water quality standards; 

vi. Abandonment of the facility; or 

vii. Failure to provide sufficient funding to carry out the terms 

and conditions of the permit.  

c) The association must notify DFA if the bond or financial security is 

canceled. The association shall have thirty (30) days from the 

notification of cancellation to obtain alternate adequate bond or 

financial security acceptable to the DFA.  

d) Failure to submit the amount of adequate bond or financially security, 

failure to procure adequate bond or financial security, and failure to 

submit proof of adequate bond or financial security will be cause for 

either revocation of the permit, enforcement action, or both. 

 

 Funding Priority 

The association, in its bylaws or on publicly recorded plats, shall identify the 

collection system as a common area, which will receive the highest priority for 

expenditures by the association except for federal, state, and local taxes and 

insurance.  
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 Association Authority 

The governing documents of the association shall grant the association the 

authority to obtain and execute a lien on any property where the owner fails or 

refuses to pay the necessary fees and assessments. 

 

 Dissolution 

The association shall not voluntarily dissolve without providing for the proper 

operation and maintenance of the sewerage system and without written approval 

from the division. Such approval would be contingent upon proper transfer of the 

permit and the sewerage system to a public utility, privately owned public utility, 

or other entity acceptable to the Division. 

 

 Changes in Association Officers 

The association shall submit to the Division the names, addresses and phone 

numbers of the association officers within thirty (30) days of the effective date of 

this permit. The association shall also notify the Division of any change in status 

of the association officers within thirty (30) days of such a change. The association 

must have readily available for inspection, a list of names and mailing addresses 

of all active members of the association. 
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PART 3 
 

3. DEFINITIONS AND ACRONYMS 

3.1. DEFINITIONS 

For the purposes of this permit, a collection system includes septic tanks, pump 

tanks, and sewer lines. 

 

A calendar day means the 24-hour period from midnight to midnight or any other 

24-hour period that reasonably approximates the midnight to midnight time 

period. 

 

Discharge or discharge of a pollutant refers to the addition of pollutants to waters 

from a source. 

 

A dry weather overflow means a sanitary sewer overflow that is not directly 

related to a rainfall event. 

 

Owner or operator means any person who owns, leases, operates, controls, or 

supervises a source. 

 

Person means an individual, association, partnership, corporation, municipality, 

state or federal agency, or an agent or employee thereof.  

 

Point source means any discernible, confined, and discrete conveyance, including 

but not limited to, any pipe, ditch, channel, tunnel, conduit, well, discrete fissure, 

container, rolling stock, concentrated animal feeding operation, landfill leachate 

collection system, vessel, or other floating craft from which pollutants are or may 

be discharged. This term does not include return flows from irrigated agriculture 

or agricultural stormwater runoff. 

 

Pollutant means sewage, industrial wastes, or other wastes. 

 

Pollution means such alteration of the physical, chemical, biological, 

bacteriological, or radiological properties of the waters of this state including, but 

not limited to, changes in temperature, taste, color, turbidity, or odor of the waters 

that will: 

 

(a) Result or will likely result in harm, potential harm, or detriment to the public 

health, safety, or welfare; 
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(b) Result or will likely result in harm, potential harm, or detriment to the health 

of animals, birds, fish, or aquatic life; 

 

(c) Render or will likely render the waters substantially less useful for domestic, 

municipal, industrial, agricultural, recreational, or other reasonable uses; or 

 

(d) Leave or likely leave the waters in such condition as to violate any standards 

of water quality established by the Board. 

 

Quarter means any one of the following three-month periods: January 1 through 

March 31, April 1 through June 30, July 1 through September 30, and/or October 

1 through December 31. 

 

Rainfall event means any occurrence of rain, preceded by 10 hours without 

precipitation that results in an accumulation of 0.01 inches or more. Instances of 

rainfall occurring within 10 hours of each other will be considered a single rainfall 

event.  

 

Release means the flow of sewage from any portion of the collection or 

transmission system owned or operated by a publicly owned treatment works 

(POTW) or a domestic wastewater treatment plant, other than through permitted 

outfalls, that does not reach waters. In addition, a "release" includes a backup into 

a building or private property that is caused by blockages, flow conditions, or 

other malfunctions originating in the collection or transmission system owned or 

operated by the permittee. A "release" does not include: 

 

(a) Backups into a building or private property caused by blockages or other 

malfunctions originating in a private lateral; 

 

(b) Events caused by vandalism; 

 

(c) Events caused by lightning strike; 

 

(d) Events caused by damage due to third parties working on other utilities in the 

right of way, e.g., cross bore from telecommunications line; or 

 

(e) Events that are directly incidental to planned, preventative, or predictive 

maintenance provided the site is under the direct control of a certified 

operator or contractor, public access is restricted, and the site is disinfected. 
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Sanitary sewer overflow or SSO means an unpermitted discharge of wastewater 

from the collection, transmission, or treatment system other than through the 

permitted outfall. 

  

Sewage means water-carried waste or discharges from human beings or animals, 

from residences, public or private buildings, or industrial establishments, or 

boats, together with such other wastes and ground, surface, storm, or other water 

as may be present 

 

Sewerage system means the conduits, sewers, and all devices and appurtenances 

by means of which sewage and other waste is collected, pumped, treated, or 

disposed. 

 

Source means any activity, operation, construction, building, structure, facility, or 

installation from which there is or may be the discharge of pollutants. 

 

Stream means a surface water that is not a wet weather conveyance. 

 

Waters means any and all water, public or private, on or beneath the surface of 

the ground, which are contained within, flow through, or border upon Tennessee 

or any portion thereof, except those bodies of water confined to and retained 

within the limits of private property in single ownership which do not combine or 

effect a junction with natural surface or underground waters. 

 

Watercourse means a man-made or natural hydrologic feature with a defined 

linear channel that discretely conveys flowing water, as opposed to sheet-flow. 

 

Wet weather conveyance means, notwithstanding any other law or rule to the 

contrary, man-made or natural watercourses, including natural watercourses that 

have been modified by channelization: 

 

(a) That flow only in direct response to precipitation runoff in their immediate 

locality; 

 

(b) Whose channels are at all times above the groundwater table; 

 

(c) That are not suitable for drinking water supplies; and 

 

(d) In which hydrological and biological analyses indicate that, under normal 

weather conditions, due to naturally occurring ephemeral or low flow there 

is not sufficient water to support fish, or multiple populations of obligate lotic 
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aquatic organisms whose life cycle includes an aquatic phase of at least two 

months. 

 

Wet weather overflow means a sanitary sewer overflow that is directly related to 

a specific rainfall event.  

 

Wet weather release means a release that is directly related to a specific rainfall 

event. 

 

3.2. ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS 

BOD5 –  five-day biochemical oxygen demand 

CFR –  code of federal regulations 

EPA –  Environmental Protection Agency 

EFO –  environmental field office 

MGD –  million gallons per day 

MOR –  monthly operating report 

POTW –  publicly owned treatment works 

SSO –  sanitary sewer overflow 

STP –  sewage treatment plant 

TCA –  Tennessee code annotated 

TDEC –  Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation 

 

3.3. RESOURCES, HYPERLINKS, AND WEB PAGES 

Electronic Code of Federal Regulations (eCFR), Title 40 (40 CFR § 1 through § 1099) 

 https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-

idx?SID=75202eb5d09974cab585afeea981220b&mc=true&tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title40/40chapt

erI.tpl  

 

MyTDEC Forms Login 

 https://forms.tdec.tn.gov/  

 

MyTDEC Forms & Electronic Reporting Information  

 https://www.tn.gov/environment/program-areas/wr-water-resources/netdmr-and-electronic-

reporting.html  

 

Rules of the TN Department of Environment and Conservation, Chapter 0400-40 

 https://publications.tnsosfiles.com/rules/0400/0400-40/0400-40.htm  

 

Tennessee Water Resources Data and Map Viewers 

https://www.tn.gov/environment/program-areas/wr-water-resources/water-quality/water-resources-

data-map-viewers.html  
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RATIONALE 
 

Tellico Village Property Owners Association, Inc. 

State Operating Permit No. SOP-89079 

Permit Writer: Tricia Swaney 

Date: Jul 26, 2023 

 

 

 

FACILITY CONTACT INFORMATION: 

Chet Pillsbury 

TVPOA CEO 

Phone: (865) 458-5408 

cpillsbury@tvpoa.org 

112 Chota Center 

 

Activity Description: Collect and transport via grinder pumps and low 

pressure sewers of municipal wastewaters to the Loudon 

Utilities Board (LUB) and to the Tellico Area Services 

System (TASS) 

 

Type of Collection System:  Grinder pumps and low-pressure sewer systems 

 

Tie-In Locations:   LUB 34’41’30’N 80’16’0’E 

     TASS 35’35’13’N 84’13’41’E 

 

Permit Period: This permit will be issued for a five-year period effective 

from the issuance date on the cover page. 

 

Annual Maintenance Fee: The permit annual maintenance fee is pursuant to 

Tennessee Rule 0400-40.11-.02, payable each fiscal year 

(July 1 – June 30) upon receipt of an invoice. 

 

Collection System Certified Operator: 

 

The collection system shall be operated under the 

supervision of a Grade 2 certified collection system 

operator in accordance with the Water Environmental 

Health Act of 1984. 
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Collection System Operation: 

 

For the purposes of demonstrating proper operation of the collection, transmission 

and treatment system, the permit treats releases separately from overflows and 

bypass. State regulations at 0400-40-06-.05(4)(a) & 0400-40-05-.07(2) establish 

“standard conditions”. These standard conditions include 0400-40-05-.07(2)(n) that 

sets forth specific language prohibiting sanitary sewer overflows (defined in the 

regulations as a “discharge”) and standard conditions in 0400-40-05-.07(2)(l) and (m) 

pertaining to bypass. While the regulations prohibit sanitary sewer overflow (i.e., 

discharges that reach or are likely to reach receiving waters) it does not prohibit 

“releases” that do not reach or are not likely to reach receiving waters. However, 

releases that do not reach receiving waters may be indicative of other problems, such 

as improper operation and maintenance of the sewer system. Whether another 

violation occurs or whether, for example, there is an unavoidable accident (see, e.g., 

§ 69-3-114(a)), will involve case-specific evaluations. Regardless, the permit assures, 

without waiving rights to pursue other violations associated with a release, as 

applicable, that the permittee would, at a minimum be reporting and responding to 

releases. Any release potentially warrants permittee mitigation of human health risks 

via direct or indirect contact and may demonstrate a hydraulic problem in the system 

that warrants permittee consideration as part of proper operation and maintenance 

of the system. 

 

Proper operation and maintenance of the collection system may include, but is not 

limited to: 

 

1. A comprehensive collection system map showing all drainage areas, 

manholes, pump stations (number and size of pumps), flow meters, chronic 

overflow and release locations, miles of collection system, material and 

diameter of construction, and other relevant system elements.  

2. Rainfall data at location(s) using method(s) representative of precipitation 

within the collection system area.  

3. Flow meters at locations in the collection system that would enable drainage 

area analysis and prioritization based on the amount of inflow and infiltration 

(I/I) observed. 

4. A collection system hydraulic model that predicts I/I problems in response to 

rainfall events and the effects of new conditions. 

 

When determining if a location experiences chronic sanitary sewer overflows or 

releases, the term “event(s)” includes dry weather overflows, wet weather overflows, 

dry weather releases and wet weather releases. 
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Low Pressure System Ownership/Control: 

 

On May 15, 2022, Tennessee Rules 0400-40-05 and 0400-40-06 became effective. In 

those rules, clarifying language was added regarding low pressure systems. The 

Board received a comment during the rulemaking process noting that the inclusion 

of ownership or control of low pressure systems in Tennessee Rule 0400-40-06 

governing land based disposal systems should be included Tennessee Rule 0400-40-

05 which governs discharging systems. The response to that comment is included 

below to provide direction to municipal agencies in implementing this condition of 

the permit.  

 

The Board agrees, and has added the following to Rule 0400-40-05-.07(2)(c) concerning 

proper operation and maintenance, “Low pressure pumps, low pressure tanks, septic 

tank effluent pumps (STEP), STEP tanks, and septic tank effluent gravity tanks are 

integral to the treatment and conveyance of sewage in a low-pressure system design, 

and shall be owned or under control of the municipality, other body of government, 

public utility district, or a privately-owned public utility demonstrating lawful 

jurisdiction over the service area.” This permit condition is not applicable to pumps 

and appurtenances that are service lines to other than a low-pressure public system. 

This condition applies to sewer projects or extensions that are approved for 

construction after the effective date of the permit.  

 

While the Board encourages direct ownership of the low pressure pumps and tanks, it 

does recognize that in some cases, operational control without direct asset ownership 

may suffice. The Board acknowledges that operational control may be implemented 

collectively by multiple local agencies. Operational control for privately-owned low 

pressure pumps and appurtenances appropriately includes the following: 

• Legal mechanism e.g. local regulations, ordinance, plumbing codes, resolution 

etc. that provides the authority to: 

o Deny the use of low pressure pumps and tanks 

o Establish and enforce design standards 

o Access the site and equipment (including inspection) 

o Obtain remedies for non-compliance 

o Conduct an emergency response  

• Plans review process to ensure compliance with the locally established design 

standards (including inspection of installation) 

• Construction, inspection, and approval process 

• Preventative and emergency maintenance program 

 

In addition, all components of the sewerage system must be owned by a municipality, 

other body of government, public utility district, or a privately-owned public utility 
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demonstrating lawful jurisdiction over the service area in accordance with Rule 0400-

40-16-.02(8).  
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State of Tennessee 

Department of Environment and Conservation 

Knoxville Environmental Field Office 

3711 Middlebrook Pike 

Knoxville, Tennessee 37921-6538 

Phone (865) 594-6035 Statewide 1-888-891-8332               FAX (865) 594-6105 

September 18, 2024 

Mr. Kevin Hamil,  

TVPOA Utilities Manager

Tellico Village Property Owners Association (TVPOA) 

112 Chota Center, Loudon, TN 37774 

RE:      Sanitary Sewer Survey (SSS) inspection 

TVPOA Sanitary Sewer System 

State Operating Permit (SOP) Permit No. SOP-89079 

Loudon County 

Dear Mr. Hamil: 

On September 3, Hassan Sanaat with the Division of Water Resources started conducting 

a Sanitary Sewer Survey (SSS) on the TVPOA State Operating Permit (SOP) permit 

program. Period that covers this inspection is from February 2018 through July 2024. The 

following is a report of this inspection:  

Overview 

TVPOA Sanitary Sewer System’s State Operation Permit (SOP-89079) has been 

effective since November 1, 2023 and expires on October 31, 2028. This SOP 

permit authorizes the operation of a domestic wastewater collection system. 

TVPOA collection system collects domestic wastewater from its community, and 

discharges to the Loudon STP wastewater collection system, and Nile Ferry 

(TASS) STP wastewater collection system for treatment. There are almost

0.50 miles of gravity sewer line and 109 miles of force line. Collection system 

lines are made of Poly Vinyl Chloride (PVC), and ductile iron. Cleaning activities 

includes hydraulic jet cleaning. There are fifteen (15) manholes and thirteen 

(13) pump stations in TVPOA collection system. The Tellico Village main

pumping station discharges to the Loudon Utility Board (LUB) collection

system while Tellico Village Kahite pumping station discharges to TASS’s

Niles Ferry wastewater collection system. SCADA system is utilized in the

collection system. All homes are equipped with grinder pumps. The degreasers are

applied in the pump stations. The collection system is not a combined sewer

system. There are a total of ten (10) people working in wastewater collection

system. There have been four (4) releases and six (6) overflows in past three

years. There is no Sewer Overflow Response plan (SORP). The old SORP was

allegedly destroyed by fire several years ago. Inspection activities include CCTV

and visual manhole inspection.
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Cleaning activities include only hydraulic jet cleaning. Chemical/biological 

grease control is added to the pump stations. There are roughly fifty 

(50) complaints per year which are mostly about sewage odor. Ninety percent of

these complaints are resolved within twenty-four hours. There are written

procedures for SSO problem evaluation/solution, procedure to clean up/

mitigate of SSO effects and finally there is a program for confined entry.

The wastewater collection system staff are provided training with these

procedures. The training is updated annually. There is a Capacity, Management,

Operation and Maintenance (CMOM) program. There is a GIS map of the

collection system. There is one satellite community, namely, Kahite, that

discharges to TVPOA collection system, and pumped to TASS’s Niles Ferry

STP for processing. There are fifty-six hundreds (5600) residential, fifty

(50) commercial, and no industrial connections in the TVPOA wastewater

collection system. There are three (3) problematic areas for overflow during

heavy rain events, Toqua Road lift station, Kahite lift station and Main lift

station. The discharge is measured by the flow meter reading at each point of

discharge to Niles Ferry STP collection system, and Loudon STP collection

system.  No quarterly daily flow data collected at tie-in/discharge points was

ever reported to the Division during the last NPDES permit cycle (November

1, 2019 – October 31, 2023. However, quarterly reports have been submitted

during the newly issued NPDES permit.

Site Visit 

On Friday, September 13, 2024, Hailey Kraft and I visited TVPOA and met 

with you, and Mr. Marty Whitehead, collection system operator (Grade 

II). We discussed the collection system operation, and the permit requirement. 

We toured the Main pump station which pumps the collected wastewater by a 

twelve-inch force main to Loudon STP for processing. This pump station 

handles ninety percent (90%) of total collected wastewater.  

Conclusion 

A sewer overflow response plan (SORP) form template was emailed to you to help with 

development of a new Sewer Overflow Response Plan (SORP). Division would like to 

thank you, and Mr. Whithead, for courtesy and cooperation extended during this 

inspection.   

Should you have any comments or questions, please do not hesitate to call me at (865) 

407-9356 or email me at Hassan.Sanaat@tn.gov.

Sincerely, 

Hassan A. Sanaat 

Division of Water Resources 

e-copy: Compliance & Enforcement, DWR, Nashville
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Tellico Village Property Owners 

Re: Water and Sewer Infrastructure Asset Fee (WSIAF) 

At the July 17, 2024, Tellico Village Property Owner’s Association (TVPOA) Board of Directors (BOD) 
meeting, the BOD approved the implementation of a $80 per month WSIAF for utility customers 
effective October 1, 2024.  This fee will apply to any property receiving water and sewer utility 
service from TVPOA and was approved for a period of 60 months.  However, the WSIAF amount will 
be reviewed at least annually and may be adjusted based on updated information for 
infrastructure project costs or the realization of other funding opportunities. 

The purpose of the WSIAF is to finance five TVPOA-identified water and sewer projects that are 
needed to address significant risks associated with TVPOA’s 35-year-old utility infrastructure.  
These projects are currently estimated to total approximately $36 million, but actual costs are 
subject to final design and bid processes.  The fee is to be used solely for water and sewer 
infrastructure expenditures and will be accounted for separately.  Information about the five 
projects is available on the TVPOA website and has been explained via YouTube videos on the 
Tellico Village Network.  Each of the projects remains subject to final review and approval by both 
POA management and the TVPOA BOD prior to implementation.  These water and sewer projects 
are consistent with approaches taken by other utility districts and municipalities to address 
similar infrastructure issues. 

The TVPOA BOD approved the WSIAF in accordance with Article VI of the Declaration of 
Covenants and Restrictions that each property owner is bound to when purchasing property in 
Tellico Village.  Our legal counsel reviewed and confirmed the Board’s interpretation of Article VI of 
the Declaration to authorize the implementation of the WSIAF.   Legal counsel has rendered a 
written legal opinion, and that document is available for review on the TVPOA website.   

The volunteer TVPOA BOD members approved the WSIAF after an extensive multi-year study and 
review of the current risks associated with existing TVPOA water and sewer infrastructure.  Each of 
the five water and sewer projects has been unanimously approved by the Public Services Advisory 
Committee (PSAC) members.  The WSIAF had the unanimous support of the Finance Advisory 
Committee (FAC) as the optimal means to improve TVPOA’s utility infrastructure based on current 
information and projections to finance these projects.  Contractors will not bid on these multi-year 
projects unless the POA can demonstrate existing financial capacity to pay for project 
expenditures.   
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The PSAC and FAC members are committed fellow property owners with extensive past 
professional careers and relevant experience.  The advisory committee members spent countless 
hours understanding optional approaches and challenging assumptions before making 
recommendations.   

In order to have sufficient funds available to the POA to complete and finance the five water and 
sewer projects, collection of the WSIAF must start now.  As a reminder, the POA has extremely 
limited options to obtain traditional bank financing for these projects, given restrictions in its 
governing documents.  The POA cannot practically pledge either assets or a revenue stream as 
collateral for a loan.  In addition, current loan rates are not favorable for significant POA borrowing. 

It is recognized that some Tellico property owners disagree with TVPOA’s current approach. BOD 
members and POA management have heard and carefully considered the concerns raised by 
Tellico property owners.   

Recently, the TVPOA BOD members and POA management have been made aware that one or 
more Tellico property owners have initiated a fundraising effort to finance legal counsel and 
potentially initiate litigation against the TVPOA concerning the WSIAF.  The TVPOA BOD certainly 
respects the rights of all property owners to organize and express concerns regarding any utility 
matters.  However, the BOD urges all property owners to carefully consider the merits and viability 
of such litigation, along with the financial risk to the POA and all residents that may result from 
delaying these projects, before engaging in such fundraising effort or potential litigation. 

In addition, some property owners have expressed the potential intent of not paying the $80 
monthly WSIAF by short-paying their monthly water and sewer bills. Payment of the WSIAF is not 
optional, and any property owner not paying the fee will be subject to the discontinuation of water 
service under the POA policy, along with associated fees for late payment and reconnection of 
utility service.   

The TVPOA BOD voted to implement the WSAIF and intends to initiate the water and sewer 
infrastructure projects as the optimal approach to maintain long-term property values for all 
Tellico property owners.  As demonstrated in an August BOD presentation of a study conducted by 
the Long-Range Planning Advisory Committee, Tellico Village provides significant value to owners 
and residents compared to other property owners associations.  Your elected BOD and POA 
management intend to maintain and operate TVPOA in a financially sound manner while 
addressing known infrastructure risks. 

Thank you for supporting Tellico Village and for carefully considering the information in this letter. 

Sincerely, 

Board of Directors, Tellico Village Property Owners Association 
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www.tellicovillagepoa.org 
112 Chota Center   ·   Loudon, TN 37774   ·   865-458-5408 

TELLICO VILLAGE POA – WATER & SEWER RATES 

Effective: January 1, 2025 

RESIDENTIAL 

WATER SEWER 

FIRST 2,000 GAL. @ 38.00 (2,000 GAL.)  FIRST 2,000 GAL. @32.00 PER 2,000 

NEXT 13,000 GAL. @ 13.00 PER 1,000      NEXT 3,000 GAL. @ 9.00 PER 1,000 

NEXT 15,000 GAL. @ 15.00 PER 1,000     ($59.00 5,000 GAL. MAX) 

OVER 30,000 GAL. @ 20.00 PER 1,000    MAINT. FEE 20% OF SEWER ($11.80 MAX) 

COMMERCIAL 

WATER SEWER 

FIRST 2,000 GAL. @ 38.00 (2,000 GAL.)  FIRST 2,000 GAL. @32.00 PER 2,000 

NEXT 13,000 GAL. @ 13.00 PER 1,000     NEXT 23,000 GAL. @ 9.00 PER 1,000 

 OVER 25,000 GAL. @ 0.00 PER 1,000 

TAX   .0900  LOUDON CO. WATER ONLY 
TAX   .0925  MONROE CO. WATER ONLY 

MINIMUM BILL (RESIDENTIAL) 

 MONROE COUNTY   LOUDON COUNTY 

0-2,000 GAL.  $38.00 WATER  $38.00 WATER 
     32.00 SEWER  32.00 SEWER 

   6.40 SEW. MAINT.  6.40 SEW. MAINT. 
 80.00 WSIAF         80.00 WSIAF 

        3.52 TAX         3.42 TAX 
 ___________     ___________ 

TOTAL    $159.92          $159.82 
 ==========  ========== 
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Complaint Form 

Date Submitted 8/11/2024 6:18 AM 

Unique Id 1110012353 

Complainant Information 

Respondent Information 

Respondent Name Tellico Village Property Owners Association (POA)

Respondent Country United States

Complainant Name Jan M Krusick

Age Range 60 or older

Are you an active duty service member, 

military dependent, or retired from active duty 

military services? 

No

Country of Residence United States

Complainant Address 277 Ootsima Way 

Loudon, Tennessee 37774

Complainant County Loudon

Complainant Phone (941) 225-5011

Complainant Phone-Ext 9412255011

Complainant Email mountainview01@msn.com
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Respondent Address 112 Chota Circle 
 
Loudon, Tennessee 37774 

Respondent County Loudon 

Respondent Phone  
Respondent Phone Ext 8654585408 
Respondent Email info@tvpoa.org 

 

About the Incident 

Incident Date 8/11/2024 

In which state did your purchase/transaction 

take place? 

Tennessee 

Category 29 - Real Estate/Property Owner Associations 
Give a complete statement of the facts, with 

dates 

Dear Attorney General: We are writing to you to 
ask for your help. We live in Tellico Village an 
unincorporated planned community in East 
Tennessee. Tellico Village is managing our water 
and sewer usage and billing us for the same. The 
board states there is a problem with water 
storage, which includes rain water, and sewer. 
They are planning on adding $80.00 to our water 
bill for 60 months. This $80.00 is to pay for a 
$36,000,000.00 updated water and sewer 
system. The Tellico Village board states they are 
in compliance with state and local regulations 
and not calling this an assessment. We would like 
to know why Tellico Village is in charge of billing 
us for water and sewer and not a utility 
company? Is this even legal? It appears the 
residents of Tellico Village are being charged 
double for water usage as compared to 
communities outside of of Tellico Village in 
Loudon County. Why is this legal or happening? 
Why are they allowed to add an additional 
$80.00 to the exorbitantly high water charge we 
are already paying? There have been a few 
meetings with the board and the community, 
There are multiple engineers living in our 
community who have offered input regarding 
solutions to updating the water and sewer 
concern and the board will not listen to them. 
The community has also raised questions that the 
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board cannot even answer. The board states 
when this project is completed it may not even 
solve the problem. Residents are accusing the 
Tellico Village employees of doing "drive by" 
meter readings to determine usage. Other 
residents are complaining of paying $750.00 a 
month for water for a household of 2. It is 
reported to us that the board never even 
obtained multiple estimates for this large project 
and went directly with one company. This seems 
strange to us. In our opinion, this is reckless use 
of money. The majority of people living in Tellico 
Village are retirees living on fixed incomes. We 
are concerned this may impact home values as 
home sales are up 70%. 

Amount involved? 36,000,000.00 
How did you pay? Check 

What is the name of the finance 

company/lender? 
 

Would you like for this complaint to also 

potentially be provided to the finance 

company/lender for review? 

 

Was this product or service advertised? No 

When  
Where  
What would you like the business to do? Protect the residents of Tellico Village and step in 

and investigate this! Don't force us to sell our 
homes! There are multiple residents who feel the 
way we do regarding this water/sewer project.  
We wanted to contact you so that perhaps you 
would address this at your visit to Tellico Village 
on 08/12/2024. Thank you for your 
consideration. John and Jan Krusick 

Is this an Automobile Complaint? No 

Year  
Make  
Model  
VIN  
Have you contacted the business? Yes 
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With whom did you speak? Chet Pillsbury 

When did you make contact? Town meetings 

Is there anyone else with firsthand knowledge 

of your complaint? 

Yes 

Name Multiple Residents 

Title We are waiting for permission before we list 
other residents names 

Phone  
Email  
Have you or the business filed a lawsuit 

regarding this complaint? 

No 

How did you hear about the Division of 

Consumer Affairs complaint program? 

Internet search 

Other  

 

Attestation  

Attestation By submitting this complaint, I hereby attest 

to the accuracy or truthfulness of the content. 
 

Attachments 

How Many Files 0 
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